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tantly, these companies have impressed us by demonstrating durability during tough econom-
ic conditions.

Business Model Enhancement: The addition of venture lending to MVC’s investment activities
is, in our view, a considerable enhancement to the Fund’s business model.The venture lending
component is intended to generate interest income, which can offer a stable rate of return on
investment, thereby serving to balance the potential deferred returns of venture equity invest-
ing. Interest income can also be used to help offset the Fund’s operating expenses.
Furthermore, the hybrid debt and equity strategy provides us with a competitive advantage in
that we can offer highly customizable financings beyond the capability of most of our peers,
an aspect which can make the difference in a private company’s selection of an investor.

New Board of Directors: To oversee implementation of the Fund’s strategy, MVC’s Board has
named four new independent Directors with exceptional reputations as leaders of world-class
companies.Their skill and experience in the venture capital industry will be invaluable to us
as we work to finance the next generation of information technology leaders. The new
Directors are:

Michael H. Jordan. Former Chairman & CEO, CBS Corporation and Westinghouse Electric
Corporation. Board member of Dell Computer Corp., Aetna, Inc., i2 Technologies and
Pinnacor, Inc.

Laurence R. Hootnick. Former President & CEO, Maxtor Corp.As a Senior Vice President of
Intel, his responsibilities included Finance & Administration and Worldwide Sales &
Marketing; also, former President of Intel’s Embedded Control & Memory Group. Co-
founder of Acuity Ventures.

Vincent H.Tobkin. Director, Founder & Head,Worldwide Technology and Telecom, Bain &
Company. Earlier, he founded and was a General Partner of Sierra Ventures and a Partner of
McKinsey & Company’s High Technology Practice.

Peter J. Locke. Former Managing Director and Head of the Western Region of Citibank
Corporate Banking, where he was involved in numerous corporate debt financings. Currently
a commercial and financial arbitrator.

Outlook: Looking forward we are optimistic about the prospects for the economy in general,
and MVC in particular. In any event, we believe the Fund’s investment model is well suited for
the current economic environment while it better positions MVC to take advantage of a pos-
sible market rebound. We are excited about the potential of our venture lending strategy
enhancement, which has been well received in the venture community thus far.We are also
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To Our Shareholders:

It has been a challenging third fiscal year for the Fund as the markets witnessed an overall
decline in both public and private equities.Volatile markets also limited IPO and M&A activ-
ity, leaving venture capitalists with considerably fewer exit opportunities for their portfolio
companies. However, we are seeing strong indications that we are at or near the bottom of the
business cycle and poised for a recovery.We made the right decision in conserving the cash you
entrusted to us, and now is the time to put that cash to work in exciting new investments.

In order to take full advantage of the opportunities at hand, MVC Capital has developed a plan
to enhance shareholder value in the near term, while anticipating increased returns over the
long term.We are optimistic about the Fund’s outlook under our new strategy, which includes
the addition of a venture lending component that is designed to generate interest income for
the Fund and its shareholders.

It is with renewed confidence, therefore, that we present you with MVC’s annual report for the
fiscal year ending October 31, 2002. In this report we have included comments on the Fund’s
performance, general investment climate, current portfolio, and prospects for the future.

Fund Performance: The Fund’s stock price witnessed a decline of approximately 14% during
the one-year reporting period, compared with a decline of roughly 21% in the technology
heavy Nasdaq and about 34% in the Morgan Stanley Technology Index.The Fund’s net asset
value also depreciated approximately 23%, reflecting write-downs in the value of the venture
portfolio as a result of difficult operating conditions and an unfavorable financing environment
for private companies. On a positive note, this trend enabled the Fund to purchase stock in
existing and new companies at lower valuations. We are also encouraged by the fact that many
of our companies made impressive strides in building their businesses throughout the year.

Portfolio Profile: During the course of the reporting period we turned much of our attention
to maximizing the value of the Fund’s existing portfolio.Toward that end, our strategy has been
to seek the liquidation of companies with cash on their balance sheets and limited prospects in
an effort to redistribute capital into new investments.We have also focused our efforts on help-
ing promising portfolio companies streamline their businesses to better prepare them for the
challenging operating environment. Where appropriate, our approach has been to increase
ownership stakes in those portfolio companies that we believe are best positioned to emerge
from the current economic downturn.

We consider the existing portfolio to be diversified across companies that represent promising
sectors such as network security, insurance claims processing, and electronic design automation
(EDA), all of which demonstrate signs of positive growth.We are particularly excited about the
Fund’s most recent investments as they characterize stable companies that we feel possess defen-
sible technologies, strong management teams, and healthy balance sheets. Perhaps most impor-
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PORTFOL IO  SUMMARY

CBCA, Inc. 5.12% Claims processing software $ 9,999.99

Sonexis, Inc. 3.58% IP-based communications services $ 7,000.00

Blue Star Solutions, Inc. 2.30% Enterprise application service provider $ 4,499.99

0-In Design Automation, Inc. 2.05% Electronic design automation software $ 4,000.00

Sygate Technologies, Inc. 2.05% Network security software $ 4,000.00

ProcessClaims, Inc. 1.71% Claims processing software $ 3,343.77
FOLIOfn, Inc. 1.54% Customized investment portfolios $ 2,999.77
SafeStone Technologies PLC 1.38% Network security software $ 2,687.32
Actelis Networks, Inc. 1.28% Broadband transport services over

copper wire $ 2,500.00
Ishoni Networks, Inc. 1.28% Broadband communications software

and hardware $ 2,499.90

1 As a percentage of net investment assets.

Percent  o f  Fa i r  
Ho ld ing Net  Assets Descr ip t ion Value

( in  thousands)

TOP 10 EQUITY HOLDINGS1

October  31, 2002

PORTFOLIO CHARACTERISTICS

Por t fo l io  Composi t ion October  31, 2002*

Median Market Capitalization** $ 145,959,000

Net Investment Assets $ 195,386,477

Average Market Price*** $ 8.846

* Calculation is based upon information provided by State Street Bank and Trust as of October 31, 2002, for securities held in the portfolio.
** Median market capitalization is computed by multiplying the average market price by the number of shares outstanding.
*** Average market price based on NYSE closing prices from October 31, 2001 to October 31, 2002.

Preferred Stock (venture investments) 

U.S. Gov't & Agency Bonds  

Corporate Bonds  0

Certificates of Deposit  00

Warrants

Cash & Cash Equivalents 

Subordinated Notes

Other Assets (Interest Rec.) 0

quite pleased with the investment opportunities currently being presented to us in both pri-
vate equity and venture debt, and we intend to take advantage of this positive investment cli-
mate with the Fund’s healthy cash position.

We are acutely aware of how difficult today’s market environment has been for investors.That
being said, we would like to stress that venture capital investing is a long-term endeavor as it
takes several years for private companies to reach the public markets. History suggests that
when they do, the wait generally has paid off for investors.1 MVC was formed to provide indi-
vidual investors the opportunity to participate in venture capital and we remain confident that
this asset class will ultimately reward the patient shareholder in the future.

We would like to thank you for your continued support of the Fund.

Sincerely,

John M. Grillos William “Boots” Del Biaggio

CEO President

1Venture Economics’ US Private Equity Performance Index (all venture) as of 9/30/2002 indi-
cates that the venture capital funds they tracked posted returns of –22.3%, 15.1%, 26.8%, 26.3%,
and 16.7% for 1,3, 5, 10, and 20 year periods, respectively. Venture Economics’ US Private
Equity Performance Index is calculated quarterly from Venture Economics’ Private Equity
Performance Database (PEPD). The PEPD tracks the performance of 1400 US venture capi-
tal and buyout funds formed since 1969. Returns are net to investors after fees and carried
interest. Source:Thompson Venture Economics/National Venture Capital Association.
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JOHN M. GRILLOS is chief executive officer and portfolio manager of MVC Capital (the “Fund”).
John brings to the Fund more than 10 years of venture capital experience and over 20 years of entrepre-
neurial, professional and managerial experience in the information technology industry.
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Q &  A

Q: Why did the Fund add venture lending to
its investment strategy?

The path to liquidity for venture-backed
companies has lengthened over the past few years
as M&A and IPO activity has become limited.
We see venture lending as a significant comple-
ment to the equity portion of the portfolio by
generating interest income that can help bridge
the gap of increased liquidity cycles which
private technology companies are experiencing.
Furthermore, venture lending deals may include
warrants to purchase stock, potentially enabling
the Fund to enjoy the upside when IPOs and
acquisitions do occur, while seeking to receive a
consistent income stream through loan obligation
fees and interest payments in the near term.

Moreover, we have recognized that there is a
large demand for venture debt financings
resulting from the fact that it has become
increasingly difficult for private companies to
raise equity from venture capitalists. At the same
time, we believe that there is an undersupply of
lenders since highly regulated commercial
banking institutions tend to avoid lending to
private companies, and venture capital firms are
typically limited by their charters to making only
equity investments.We aim to take advantage of
the positive pricing opportunity presented to us
as a result of the current venture lending supply
and demand imbalance.

Q: How does the addition of venture lending
directly benefit MVC shareholders?

Venture lending can generate interest income,
which could benefit MVC shareholders in
several ways. Interest income opens the door to
the possibility of issuing cash dividends to
shareholders. Nearer term returns in the form of
dividends can help bridge the gap to potential
future dividends from the Fund’s equity

investments.The yield that is generated by interest
income may also help support the market price of
MVC. Additionally, interest earned may help
offset operating expenses incurred by the Fund,
which can help preserve the net asset value of
MVC in the short term.

Another benefit of venture lending is that it will
diversify the MVC portfolio, thus helping mitigate
risk.Venture debt has greater downside protection
than venture equity since it generally includes
liquidation preference over equity positions.
Venture debt investments are also frequently
amortized, which limits exposure by reducing the
principal amount of the loan over time. As we
have done in the past, we will continue to manage
risk by investing in companies that have the
financial support of well-capitalized top-tier
venture funds, thereby reducing the probability
of default.

Q: Discuss the performance of the Fund
during the reporting period.

It has been quite challenging to produce the
positive returns that we believe MVC Capital
will be able to achieve over the long-term
during today’s extraordinarily challenging
environment, for the capital markets generally,
and for the technology sector specifically. It is
for this reason that we are disappointed to
report that the market price of MVC declined
approximately 14%, and the net asset value by
roughly 23% during the one-year reporting
period. Throughout the same period, the
technology heavy Nasdaq fell roughly 21% and
the Morgan Stanley Technology Index fell
nearly 34%.

The difficult market environment that
pressured MVC’s stock price during the period
did create positive news with regard to
investment climate. Valuations are extremely
attractive, and the companies that have endured
the hardships over the past couple of years are
remarkably solid. Furthermore, our hybrid
venture debt and equity strategy has attracted
many top-tier venture capitalists and private
companies, yielding a number of high quality
investment opportunities conducive to
generating positive returns for the Fund.

“…our new hybrid ven-

ture debt and equity strat-

egy has attracted many

top-tier venture capitalists

and private companies,

yielding a number of high

quality investment oppor-

tunities…” – Jo h n  M . G r i l l o s



closely working with management to position the
companies to withstand the slowdown through
restructurings and cost reductions.

Q: What sectors are you currently evaluating,
and what strategies will you apply towards future
investment opportunities?

We are currently seeking both equity and debt
investments in high-growth industries such as
network security and electronic design
automation (EDA). We will also be actively
investigating new generations of enterprise
software, such as business process outsourcing, as
the capital requirements for software companies
are relatively low and the valuations are attractive.
Regardless of the sector, we are focusing on
companies that have significant revenue and are
at, or very close to, cash flow positive.

Our strategy from the very beginning has been to
invest alongside other top-tier venture capitalists.
Now more than ever, this approach is extremely
important as companies require significant capital
and intellectual support in order to succeed. Over
the past several years we have formed a broad
network of top-tier venture capitalists that we will
continue to tap for promising deals. Moreover,we
have recently added to our venture capital
network with the addition of key contacts from
the new debt financing team. Finally, we intend
to leverage the new relationships that are being
generated through our unique hybrid debt and
equity capability.

Q: What is your outlook for the markets in
general, and the Fund in particular?

It is our belief that the public markets are poised
for a rebound as the economy continues to
recover. We anticipate modest economic growth
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Q: Who will implement the venture lending
strategy?

We are excited about the addition of former
investment professionals from Sand Hill Capital
who will help implement the Fund’s venture
lending strategy. This team has accumulated
extensive venture debt expertise, including an
impressive $300 million in debt financings to 150
venture-backed companies. We are particularly
pleased to welcome William “Boots” Del Biaggio,
co-founder and former CEO of Sand Hill
Capital, as the new President of MVC and
director of the Fund’s venture lending activities.
In addition to his tenure at Sand Hill Capital, Mr.
Del Biaggio has gained significant operating
experience, having founded two commercial
banks as well as guiding Heritage Bank of
Commerce (NASDAQ: HTBK) through an IPO
in 1994 and a successful secondary public offering
in 1996.

Q: What are your thoughts on the Fund’s
existing venture portfolio?

The existing portfolio is diversified across sectors
that we believe have considerable growth
potential. For example, the Fund has made three
investments in the network security sector, which

include Lumeta, SafeStone, and Sygate
Technologies. We are excited about the
encouraging developments these companies have
made, as well as the positive trends the sector is
experiencing as a whole. The number of
acquisitions in the network security space has
increased in 2002, defying the overall decline in
M&A activity for private companies during the
same period. We are particularly encouraged by
the endpoint security policy space, a newly
emerging market segment in which Sygate
Technologies is a leader. This area is rapidly
expanding as companies recognize the need to
secure their alarmingly vulnerable remote access
virtual private network (VPN) users.

Q: What type of assistance are you providing
the Fund’s portfolio companies?   

In some cases we have maintained extremely close
relations with the Fund’s portfolio companies by
occupying board seats where we provide
management and financial oversight. However,
challenging economic conditions have required
us to become very active with all of MVC’s
companies. Our focus has been on ensuring the
continued financial well-being of the Fund’s
portfolio companies by managing cash burn and
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over the next year, fueled by a stimulative U.S.
fiscal policy that includes existing tax cuts and
deficit spending. We are optimistic that M&A and
IPO activity will improve along with the public
stock market, which should in turn increase exit
opportunities for private companies. We believe
that the Fund’s current portfolio consists of
companies that are poised to take advantage of a
favorable M&A and IPO market when it returns.
In the meantime, we will continue to invest in
promising companies at low valuations which we
feel will enable the Fund to produce positive
returns in the future.

Q: Why should an individual continue to hold
shares of MVC? 

Valuations are attractively low while the quality of
the private companies seeking financing is
reassuringly high. This leads us to believe that
MVC is better positioned than ever to deliver on
its mission of generating superior long-term
returns from venture capital investments,
especially given the Fund’s significant cash
position. The root premise behind the creation of
MVC was that, with a long-term view, access to
VC style investments would prove a rewarding
element in investors’ portfolios. We remain fully
convinced this vision will be realized over time.

“We see venture lending as a significant complement to the

equity portion of the portfolio by generating interest income

that can help bridge the gap of increased liquidity cycles ven-

ture equity investments are experiencing.” – Jo h n  M . G r i l l o s



FUND STATISTICS

Net Asset Value, October 31, 2001 $ 15.42

Net Asset Value, October 31, 2002 $ 11.84

Market Price, October 31, 2001 $ 9.25

Market Price, October 31, 2002 $ 7.90

Median Market Capitalization $ 145,959,000

Average Market Price $ 8.846

MVC PERFORMANCE RESULTS*

June 26, 2000 – October  31, 2002**

* Past performance is no guarantee of future results.
** The Fund's shares began trading on the NYSE on June 26, 2000.
*** The Morgan Stanley Technology Index and the NASDAQ Composite Index are unmanaged benchmarks

that assume the reinvestment of dividends and exclude the effect of fees and sales charges.
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PERFORMANCE
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dle all functions of administration, accounting and cus-
todial work necessary for the operations of the Fund.
The former Advisor provided the Fund, at the former
Advisor’s expense, with the office space, facilities,
equipment, and personnel (whose salaries and benefits
were paid by the former Advisor) necessary to enable
the Fund to conduct the operational aspects of its
business.The former Advisor also hired a sub-advisor,
Draper Fisher Jurvetson MeVC Management Co.,
LLC (“the former Sub-Advisor”), who provided the
Fund, at the former Sub-Advisor’s expense, with the
office space, facilities, equipment, and personnel
(whose salaries and benefits were paid by the former
Sub-Advisor) necessary to enable the Fund to conduct
the investment management aspects of its business.

At the Annual Meeting of the Fund held on March
27, 2002 two proposals pertaining to the re-approval
of the former Advisor and the former Sub-Advisor
failed to receive the necessary votes for approval.The
Fund’s Board of Directors then determined that
meVC Advisers, Inc. and Draper Fisher Jurvetson
MeVC Management Co., LLC would continue to
serve as the Fund’s investment advisor and sub-advi-
sor, respectively, pursuant to interim agreements,
which under SEC rules may remain in effect for a
period of up to 150 days from March 27, 2002.The
Board of Directors then undertook a thorough
review of alternatives for investment management
and administration.

On June 17, 2002, Peter S. Freudenthal, then the
President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of
the Board of the former Advisor of the Fund and of
the parent entity of the former Advisor, resigned from
his positions as Vice-Chairman, President and a
Director of the Fund. At the same time Paul D.
Wozniak, then the Vice President of Operations for
the former Advisor and the Chief Operating Officer
and Chief Financial Officer of the parent entity of the
former Advisor, resigned from his positions as Vice
President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and
Secretary of the Fund. Messrs. Freudenthal and
Wozniak also resigned from the former Advisor.

From inception through June 19, 2002, the Fund was
charged a management fee by meVC Advisers at a rate
of 2.5% of the average weekly net assets of the Fund,
paid monthly in arrears. meVC Advisers had agreed
to pay compensation to the directors and officers for
any and all services rendered to the Fund and had

agreed to pay all Fund expenses above and beyond the
2.5% management fee paid to meVC Advisers by the
Fund. On June 19, 2002, meVC Advisers resigned
without prior notice to the Fund, effective immedi-
ately, as the Fund’s investment adviser. This resignation
resulted in the automatic termination of the agree-
ment between the former Advisor and the former
Sub-Advisor to the Fund. As a consequence, the
agreement with the former Advisor where the former
Advisor agreed to pay all Fund expenses above and
beyond the 2.5% paid to the former Adviser by the
Fund also terminated.

Subsequent to the resignation of meVC Advisers, the
Fund determined that meVC Advisers had not paid
certain vendors for services performed on behalf of
the Fund, which meVC Advisers had agreed to pay.
On August 30, 2002, the Fund paid or accrued
$463,535.48 in expenses to pay those vendors, which
resulted in a $0.028 decrease in net asset value per
share. The Fund is considering legal actions that it
may take against meVC Advisers to recover these
expenses that the Fund was forced to assume and pay.

Subsequently on June 19, 2002, the Board of Directors
of the Fund met to make prompt determinations with
respect to the appropriate arrangements for the Fund’s
continued operations, specifically in the areas of port-
folio management, cash management and administra-
tion. Upon a consideration of options then available
to the Fund, the then current independent directors of
the Fund concluded that internalizing the manage-
ment of the Fund’s operations was a reasonable alter-
native, and the most viable option under the circum-
stances. The full Board, and the then current inde-
pendent directors voting separately, then appointed
Mr. John M. Grillos to serve as the interim Chief
Executive Officer and to conduct the day to day oper-
ations of the Fund, and to hire employees, vendors and
consultants necessary to perform all operations of the
Fund, including cash management, investment of the
Fund’s assets, and all necessary administrative, legal and
compliance functions not then already performed by a
third party.

The full Board, and the then current independent
directors voting separately, also authorized the Fund to
hire Ms. Ann Oglanian as a consultant to assist the
Fund through the process of internalizing manage-
ment and to consult with the Fund regarding ongoing
administrative and operational matters. Ms. Oglanian
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FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE
RESULTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certain
forward-looking statements within the meaning of the
federal securities laws that involve substantial uncer-
tainties and risks. The Fund’s future results may differ
materially from its historical results and actual results
could differ materially from those projected in the for-
ward-looking statements as a result of certain risk fac-
tors. Readers should pay particular attention to the
considerations described in the section of this report
entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”
Readers should also carefully review the risk factors
described in the other documents the Fund files, or
has filed, from time to time with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

meVC Draper Fisher Jurvetson Fund I, Inc. (the
“Fund”) is a Delaware Corporation organized on
December 2, 1999 and which commenced operations
on March 31, 2000.The Fund seeks capital apprecia-
tion and increased streams of income by making
investments in equity and equity-oriented securities
issued by privately-owned, information-technology
companies in transactions negotiated directly with
such companies (“Portfolio Companies”) and enter-
ing into venture lending by providing debt financing
to late stage venture capital backed information tech-
nology companies. The Fund’s equity investments in
Portfolio Companies will consist of equity securities
such as common and preferred stock, other equity-
oriented securities such as debt convertible into com-
mon or preferred stock, options or other rights to
acquire common or preferred stock and debt securi-
ties consisting of senior notes, senior subordinated
notes and junior subordinated notes. Venture lending
involves providing non-conventional debt financing to
private venture backed companies. A portion of the
lender’s consideration is generally taken in the form of
warrants for common or preferred stock exercisable
into shares of the borrower and, in addition, the lender
receives interest on the loans and receives origination

fees.Generally, the loans will be collateralized by a sen-
ior security interest in the borrower’s assets.The Fund
has elected to be treated as a business development
company under the Investment Company Act of
1940, as amended (“Investment Company Act”).

The Fund currently has thirteen employees engaged
in performing the duties and functions required,
including the provision of management services to
Portfolio Companies (the “Management”).The Fund
has five members on the Board of Directors. Four of
the directors are not interested persons (the
“Independent Directors”) as defined by the Investment
Company Act. The directors are responsible for pro-
viding overall guidance and supervision of the Fund,
approving the valuation of the Fund’s investments and
performing various duties imposed on directors of a
business development company by the Investment
Company Act. Among other things, the Independent
Directors supervise the management arrangements for
the Fund, the custody arrangements with respect to
portfolio securities, the selection of independent pub-
lic accountants, fidelity bonding and any transactions
with affiliates.

On December 4, 2002, the Fund announced it
had commenced doing business under the name
MVC Capital.

The Fund’s principal executive office is located at
3000 Sand Hill Road, Building 1, Suite 155, Menlo
Park, California 94025, its telephone number is
(650) 926-7000 and its website is www.mvccapi-
tal.com. Copies of the Fund’s annual regulatory filings
on Form 10-K, quarterly regulatory filings on Form
10-Q and 8-K regulatory filings may be obtained from
the Fund’s website, free of charge.

Organiza t ion

From inception through June 19, 2002, meVC
Advisers, Inc., a Delaware Corporation (the “former
Advisor” or “meVC Advisers”) provided certain man-
agement and administrative services necessary for the
operation of the Fund subject to the supervision of the
directors.The former Advisor arranged for third par-
ties to perform certain management, administrative
and other services, including the hiring of Fleet
Investment Advisors, Inc. to manage the Fund’s cash
and short term interest bearing investments, and the
hiring of State Street Bank and Trust Co, Inc. to han-
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upside of venture capital investments with a greater
level of protection against the downside risk of an
equity investment. The upside is typically achieved
through warrants or convertible features, while the
downside protection is typically achieved through liq-
uidation preference over equity investors, principal
amortization and covenants.

The Fund is attempting to reduce certain risks inher-
ent in private equity-oriented investments by investing
in a portfolio of companies involved in different sec-
tors of the Information Technology industry. The
Fund has limited its initial investment (whether in the
form of equity or debt securities, commitments to
purchase securities or debt guaranties) in any Portfolio
Company to no more than 5% of the Fund’s net assets.
However, if a follow-on investment is available or
required, as discussed below, the Fund’s investment in
a particular Portfolio Company may exceed those ini-
tial investment limitations. Also, investments in certain
Portfolio Companies may be in excess of the Fund’s
initial investment limitations due to increases in the
value of such investments or decreases in the value of
the other Fund assets.

Investment  Cr i ter ia

Prospective investments are evaluated by Management
based upon criteria that may be modified from time to
time. The criteria currently being used by
Management in determining whether to make an
investment in a prospective Portfolio Company
include, but are not limited to:

• The presence or availability of strong management
teams;

• Favorable industry and competitive dynamics;

• Markets characterized by rapid growth and new
product adaptation;

• Strong revenue traction to support the venture
lending strategy.

Co- Investments

The Fund has co-invested in certain Portfolio
Companies with affiliates of its former investment
advisor and sub-advisor in the Draper Fisher Jurvetson
network (the “Draper Network”). The Fund and

Management obtained an order from the Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) exempting
the Fund from certain prohibitions contained in the
Investment Company Act relating to co-investments
by the Fund and the Draper Network. Under the
terms of the order, Portfolio Companies purchased by
the Fund and the Draper Network are required to be
approved by the Independent Directors and are
required to satisfy certain conditions established by the
SEC. In accordance with the conditions of the order,
the Fund has co-invested with certain affiliates of
Draper Fisher Jurvetson in the following Portfolio
Companies of the Fund: IQdestination, Lumeta
Corporation, Mediaprise, Inc. and Phosistor, Inc.

Further, John M. Grillos, Chief Executive Officer of
the Fund, is a limited partner investor in Osprey
Ventures (“Osprey”), a venture capital fund investing
primarily in early stage technology companies. Mr.
Grillos owns less than 0.09% of the outstanding limit-
ed partnership interests in Osprey. Osprey is a co-
investor in two MVC portfolio companies, BlueStar
Solutions, Inc., and ShopEaze Systems, Inc.

Investment  Opera t ions

The investment operations of the Fund consist princi-
pally of the following basic activities:

Identifying Investments - Investment opportunities are
identified for the Fund by the investment team.
Investment proposals may, however, come to the Fund
from many other sources, and may include unsolicited
proposals from the public and from referrals from
banks, lawyers, accountants and other members of the
financial community.

Evaluating Investment Opportunities - Prior to com-
mitting funds to an investment opportunity, due dili-
gence is conducted to assess the prospects and risks of
the potential investment. See “Investment Criteria”
above.

Structuring Investments - Portfolio Company invest-
ments typically are negotiated directly with the
prospective Portfolio Company or its affiliates. The
investment team structures the terms of a proposed
investment, including the purchase price, the type of
security to be purchased or financing to be provided
and the future involvement of the Fund and affiliates
in the Portfolio Company’s business (including poten-
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also served as Acting Chief Operating Officer of the
Fund from June 2002 through November 2002.
Certain individuals who had been employed by the
former Advisor or the former Sub-Advisor were hired
by the Fund to enable the Fund to continue to pro-
vide portfolio management, as well as cash manage-
ment and administrative services. Mr. Nino
Marakovic, a Principal and Partner of the former Sub-
Advisor, was hired as an employee and appointed as
Secretary of the Fund.

In October 2002, the independent directors complet-
ed their due diligence regarding investment manage-
ment and administration alternatives for the Fund.The
independent directors stated their commitment to
maintaining the Fund’s investment objective of long
term capital appreciation from venture capital invest-
ments in information technology companies and that
it was in the best interest of the Fund and its share-
holders to continue to conduct the Fund’s invest-
ment operations through internal management.The
independent directors also agreed that it would be in
the Fund’s best interest to consider engaging in ven-
ture lending activities in addition to its venture equi-
ty investments. The independent directors then
unanimously, a) appointed John Grillos, the then
Chairman of the Board and CEO, to serve as the
Fund’s Chief Investment Officer; b) elected William
Del Biaggio III as President of the Fund; c) agreed to
consider investing in debt instruments issued by
information technology companies; and d) agreed to
continue to conduct the Fund’s operations through
internal management by the Fund’s Board of
Directors, officers and employees. Mr. Del Biaggio
brings expertise in debt financings for privately held
companies. Mr. Del Biaggio will focus on the Fund’s
new lending program for private companies backed
by top-tier venture capitalists.

In November 2002, Mr. Michael D. Stewart was hired
as Acting Chief Financial Officer of the Fund.

Subject to the supervision of the directors, the
Management performs services necessary for the
operations of the Fund. The investment team is
charged with identifying,evaluating, structuring,mon-
itoring, and disposing of the Fund’s investments in
Portfolio Companies and managing the Fund’s cash
and short-term, interest-bearing investments. Subject
to the supervision of the directors, Management has
arranged for third parties to perform certain of the

administrative services and other services necessary for
the operations of the Fund. Management had
engaged State Street Bank and Trust Co, Inc. (the
“Fund Administrator”, the “Fund Accounting Agent”,
the “Custodian”), to handle all functions of adminis-
tration, accounting, and custodial work necessary for
the operations of the Fund until October 31, 2002.
Effective November 1, 2002, Management has
engaged US Bancorp Fund Services LLC (the “new
Fund Administrator”, the “new Fund Accounting
Agent”), to handle all functions of administration and
accounting work, and engaged U.S. Bank National
Association (the “new Custodian”) to handle all cus-
todial work necessary for the operations of the Fund.
The Fund directly incurs expenses for all office space,
facilities, equipment and personnel necessary to con-
duct its business.

Investment  Pract ices

Substantially all of the net assets of the Fund are invest-
ed, or are intended to be invested, in securities of
Portfolio Companies. Substantially all amounts not
invested in securities or debt instruments of Portfolio
Companies are invested in short-term, highly liquid
investments consisting of interest bearing certificates
of deposit or securities issued or guaranteed as to
interest and principal by the United States or by a per-
son or entity controlled or supervised by and acting as
an instrumentality of the government of the United
States that have maturities of less than one year from
the date of the investment or other short-term, high-
ly liquid investments providing, in the opinion of
Management, appropriate safety of principal.

The Fund’s investments in Portfolio Companies are
structured in private transactions negotiated directly
with the owner or issuer of the securities acquired.

The Fund is concentrating its investment efforts on
companies of a type and size that, in Management’s
view, provide opportunities for significant capital
appreciation and prudent diversification of risk. By
investing in debt securities, the Fund seeks to provide
current interest and fee income from these financings,
as well as the potential for long term capital growth
through the appreciation in the value of warrants or
other equity instruments that it receives in connection
with making the loan.Venture lending is an asset class
that may allow the Fund to participate in the potential
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investment provide a basis for valuing such investment
at a number other than cost.

The fair value of investments for which no market
exists and for which the Fund’s Board of Directors has
determined that the original cost of the investment is
no longer an appropriate valuation will be determined
on the basis of procedures established by management
in good faith and approved by the Board of Directors.
Valuations will be based upon such factors as the per-
formance of the company relative to planned budg-
ets/forecasts, the issuer’s financial condition and the
markets in which it does business, the prices of any
recent transactions or offerings regarding such securi-
ties or any proxy securities, any material analysis,
media, or other reports or information regarding the
issuer, or the markets or industry in which it operates.
In the case of unsuccessful operations, the valuation
may be based upon anticipated liquidation proceeds.

Because of the inherent uncertainty of the valuation of
portfolio securities which do not have readily ascer-
tainable market values, the Fund’s estimate of fair value
may significantly differ from the fair market value that
would have been used had a ready market existed for
the securities. Such values do not reflect brokers’ fees
or other normal selling costs which might become
payable on disposition of such investments.

Investments in companies whose securities are pub-
licly traded are valued at their quoted market price, less
a discount to reflect the estimated effects of restrictions
on the sale of such securities (“Valuation Discount”),
if applicable.

Short-term investments having maturities of 60 days
or less are stated at amortized cost,which approximates
fair value. Other fixed income securities are stated at
fair value. Fair value of these securities is determined
at the most recent bid or yield equivalent from dealers
that make markets in such securities.

The directors review the valuations on a quarterly
basis or more frequently if deemed necessary to deter-
mine their appropriateness.

Custod ian

Prior to October 31, 2002, the Fund had entered into
an agreement with State Street Bank and Trust
Company to act as the Fund’s custodian with respect
to the safekeeping of its securities. The principal busi-
ness office of the former custodian was 225 Franklin

Street, Boston, Massachusetts, 02110. Effective
November 1, 2002, the Fund has entered into an
agreement with US Bank National Association to act
as the custodian with respect to the safekeeping of the
Fund’s securities. The principal business office of the
current custodian is 425 Walnut Street, Cincinnati,
OH  45202.

Transfer  Agent  and Disburs ing Agent

The Fund employs EquiServe as its transfer agent to
record transfers of the shares, maintain proxy records
and to process distributions. The principal business
office of such company is 150 Royall Street, Canton,
Massachusetts, 02021.

Factors  tha t  May Af fect  Future  Resul ts , the
Marke t  P r i ce  o f  Common  S tock , and  t he
Accuracy of  Forward-Looking Sta tements

In the normal course of its business, the Fund, in an
effort to keep its stockholders and the public informed
about the Fund’s operations and portfolio of invest-
ments, may from time-to-time issue certain state-
ments, either in writing or orally, that contain or may
contain forward-looking information. Generally, these
statements relate to business plans or strategies of the
Fund or Portfolio Companies in which it invests, pro-
jected or anticipated benefits or consequences of such
plans or strategies, projected or anticipated benefits of
new or follow-on investments made by or to be made
by the Fund, or projections involving anticipated pur-
chases or sales of securities or other aspects of the
Fund’s operating results. Forward-looking statements
are not guarantees of future performance and are sub-
ject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual
results to differ materially. As noted elsewhere in this
report, the Fund’s operations and portfolio of invest-
ments are subject to a number of uncertainties, risks,
and other influences, many of which are outside the
control of the Fund, and any one of which, or a com-
bination of which, could materially affect the results of
the Fund’s operations or net asset value, the market
price of its common stock, and whether forward-
looking statements made by the Fund ultimately prove
to be accurate.

The following discussion outlines certain factors that
in the future could affect the Fund’s results for 2003
and beyond and cause them to differ materially from
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tial representation on its board of directors). The
investment team seeks to structure the terms of the
investment so as to provide for the capital needs of the
Portfolio Company and at the same time maximize
the Fund’s opportunities for capital appreciation and
interest income in its investments.

Providing Management Assistance and Monitoring of
Investments - Private equity investors often assist
Portfolio Companies with various aspects of their
business operations and BDC’s are required to offer
such assistance to qualified portfolio companies. In
some cases, officers and directors of the Fund serve as
members of the board of directors of Portfolio
Companies. The Fund often provides guidance and
management assistance to Portfolio Companies with
respect to such matters as budgets, profit goals, business
and financing strategy, management additions or
replacements and plans for liquidity events for
Portfolio Company investors such as a merger or ini-
tial public offering.

Temporary  Investments

Pending investment in Portfolio Companies, the Fund
invests its available funds in interest-bearing bank
accounts, money market mutual funds, U.S. Treasury
securities and/or certificates of deposit with maturities
of less than one year (collectively, “Temporary
Investments”). Temporary Investments may also
include commercial paper and other short-term secu-
rities. Temporary Investments constituting cash, cash
items, securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S.
Treasury or U.S. Government agencies and high qual-
ity debt securities (commercial paper rated in the
highest rating category by Moody’s Investor Services,
Inc. or Standard and Poor’s Corporation) will qualify
in determining whether the Fund has 70% of its total
assets invested in Managed Companies (as hereafter
defined) or in qualified Temporary Investments for
purposes of the business development company
provisions of the Investment Company Act. See
“Regulation” below.

Fol low-On Investments

Following its initial investment in a Portfolio
Company, the Fund may be requested to make follow-
on investments in the company. Follow-on invest-
ments may be made to take advantage of warrants or

other preferential rights granted to the Fund or other-
wise to increase the Fund’s position in a successful or
promising Portfolio Company.The Fund may also be
called upon to provide additional equity or loans
needed by a Portfolio Company to fully implement
its business plans, to develop a new line of business or
to recover from unexpected business problems.

Dispos i t ion of  Investments

The method and timing of the disposition of the
Fund’s portfolio investments is critical to the realiza-
tion of capital appreciation and to the minimization of
any capital losses. The Fund expects to dispose of its
portfolio securities through a variety of transactions,
including the negotiated private sales of such securities
to other investors, the sales of portfolio securities in
underwritten public offerings, and public sales of such
securities.The Fund expects the debt financings to be
repaid with interest and hopes to realize further appre-
ciation from the warrants or other equity type instru-
ments it receives in connection with making the loan.
The Fund bears the costs of disposing of investments
to the extent not paid by a Portfolio Company.

Opera t ing Expenses

The Fund, at its own expense, bears the costs of
obtaining office space, facilities, equipment and per-
sonnel necessary to conduct the Fund’s business. The
Fund also bears other costs relating to the Fund’s oper-
ations, including fees and expenses of the Independent
Directors; fees of unaffiliated transfer agents, registrars
and disbursing agents; legal and accounting expenses;
costs of printing and mailing proxy materials and
reports to shareholders; New York Stock Exchange
fees; custodian fees; litigation costs; costs of disposing
of investments including brokerage fees and com-
missions; and other extraordinary or nonrecurring
expenses and other expenses properly payable by
the Fund.

Valua t ion

Investments in Portfolio Companies are carried at fair
value with the net change in unrealized appreciation
or depreciation included in the determination of net
assets. Cost is used to approximate fair value of these
investments until significant developments affecting an
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lar investment objectives. These competitors include
venture capital firms, small business investment com-
panies, large industrial and financial companies invest-
ing directly or through affiliates, other business devel-
opment companies, foreign investors of various types
and individuals. Many of these competitors have
greater financial resources and more personnel than
the Fund and may be subject to different and fre-
quently less stringent regulation.

Loss of Conduit Tax Treatment - The Fund may cease
to qualify for conduit tax treatment if it is unable to
comply with the diversification requirements con-
tained in Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986. Subchapter M requires that at the end of each
quarter (i) at least 50% of the value of the Fund’s assets
must consist of cash, government securities and other
securities of any one issuer that do not represent more
than 5% of the value of the Fund’s total assets and 10%
of the outstanding voting securities of such issuer, and
(ii) no more than 25% of the value of the Fund’s assets
may be invested in the securities of any one issuer
(other than United States government securities), or of
two or more issuers that are controlled by the Fund
and are engaged in the same or similar or related trades
or businesses. If the Fund fails to satisfy such diversifi-
cation requirements and ceases to qualify for conduit
tax treatment, the Fund will be subject to income tax
on its income and gains and stockholders will be sub-
ject to income tax on distributions.The Fund may also
cease to qualify for conduit tax treatment, or be sub-
ject to a 4% excise tax, if it fails to distribute a suffi-
cient portion of its net investment income and net
realized capital gains.

Market Value and Net Asset Value - The shares of the
Fund’s common stock are listed on the NYSE.
Investors desiring liquidity may trade their shares of
common stock on the NYSE at current market value,
which may differ from the then current net asset value
(Shareholders’ Equity). Shares of closed-end invest-
ment companies frequently trade at a discount from
net asset value.This characteristic of shares of a closed-
end fund is a risk separate and distinct from the risk
that the Fund’s net asset value will decrease.The risk
of purchasing shares of a closed-end fund that might
trade at a discount is more pronounced for investors
who wish to sell their shares in a relatively short peri-
od of time because for those investors, realization of a
gain or loss on their investments is likely to be more
dependent upon the existence of a premium or dis-

count than upon portfolio performance. The Fund’s
shares have traded at a significant discount to net asset
value since they began trading. For information con-
cerning the trading history of the Fund’s shares see
“Market for Registrant’s Common Stock and Related
Stockholder Matters.”

Valuation of Investments - The Fund’s net asset value
is based on the value assigned to its portfolio invest-
ments. Investments in companies whose securities are
publicly traded are valued at their quoted market
price, less a discount to reflect the estimated effects of
restrictions on the sale of such securities, if applicable.
The Fund adjusts its net asset value for changes in the
value of its publicly held securities, if any, on a daily
basis.The value of the Fund’s investments in securities
for which market quotations are not available is deter-
mined as of the end of each fiscal quarter but moni-
tored daily in case there is a significant event requiring
a change in valuation in the interim. Cost is used to
approximate fair value of such investments until signif-
icant developments affecting an investment provide a
basis for valuing an investment at other than cost.
Thereafter, such portfolio investments are carried at
fair values as determined at least quarterly. Due to the
inherent uncertainty of the valuation of portfolio
securities which do not have readily ascertainable mar-
ket values, the Fund’s estimate of fair value may signif-
icantly differ from the fair value that would have been
used had a ready market existed for the securities. At
October 31, 2002, 100% of the preferred stocks and
subordinated notes in Portfolio Companies held by
the Fund, representing approximately 25.65% and
2.09%, respectively, of the Fund’s net assets, were
invested in securities for which market quotations
were not readily available. See “Valuation”.

Possible Volatility of Stock Price - The market price of
the Fund’s common stock could be subject to signifi-
cant fluctuations in response to variations in the net
asset value of the Fund, its quarterly operating results,
and other factors. The market price of the common
stock may be significantly affected by such factors as
the announcement of new or follow-on investments
in Portfolio Companies, the sale or proposed sale of a
portfolio investment, the results of operations or fluc-
tuations in the market prices or appraised value of one
or more of the Fund’s Portfolio Companies, changes
in earnings estimates by market analysts, speculation in
the press or analyst community and general market
conditions or market conditions specific to particular
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those that may be set forth in any forward-looking
statement made by or on behalf of the Fund:

Long-Term Objective - The Fund is intended for
investors seeking long-term capital growth.The Fund
is not meant to provide a vehicle for those who wish
to play short-term swings in the stock market. The
Portfolio Companies acquired by the Fund generally
require several or many years to reach maturity and
generally are illiquid. An investment in shares of the
Fund should not be considered a complete investment
program. Each prospective purchaser should take into
account their investment objectives as well as their
other investments when considering the purchase of
shares of the Fund.

Non-Diversified Status; Number of Investments -
The Fund is classified as a “non-diversified” invest-
ment company under the Investment Company Act,
which means the Fund is not limited in the propor-
tion of its assets that may be invested in the securities
of a single issuer. Generally, the Fund does not intend
to initially invest more than 5% of the value of its net
assets in a single Portfolio Company. However, fol-
low-on investments or a disproportionate increase in
the value of one Portfolio Company or decrease in the
value of other assets may result in greater than 5% of
the Fund’s net assets being invested in a single
Portfolio Company.While these restrictions limit the
exposure of the capital of the Fund in any single
investment, to the extent the Fund takes large posi-
tions in the securities of a small number of issuers, the
Fund will be exposed to a greater risk of loss and the
Fund’s net asset value and the market price of its com-
mon stock may fluctuate as a result of changes in the
financial condition, the stock price of, or in the mar-
ket’s assessment of any single Portfolio Company to a
greater extent than would be the case if it were a
“diversified” company holding numerous investments.
As of October 31, 2002, the Fund has investments in
20 Portfolio Companies, one of which, CBCA, Inc,
exceeds 5% of the Fund’s net asset value.

Lack of Liquidity of Portfolio Investments -  The port-
folio investments of the Fund consist principally of
securities that are subject to restrictions on sale
because they were acquired from the issuer in “private
placement” transactions or because the Fund is
deemed to be an affiliate of the issuer. Generally, the
Fund may not be able to sell these securities publicly.
Any public sale of these securities would demand the

expense and time required to register the securities
under the Securities Act and applicable state securities
law unless an exemption from such registration
requirements is available. In addition, contractual or
practical limitations may restrict the Fund’s ability to
liquidate its securities in Portfolio Companies since in
many cases the securities of such companies will be
privately held and the Fund may own a relatively large
percentage of the issuer’s outstanding securities. Sales
may also be limited by securities market conditions,
which may be unfavorable for sales of securities of par-
ticular issuers or issuers in particular industries. The
above limitations on liquidity of the Fund’s securities
could preclude or delay any disposition of such secu-
rities or reduce the amount of proceeds that might
otherwise be realized.

Debt Financings in Portfolio Investments - The port-
folio investments of the Fund will also consist of debt
financing to late stage venture capital backed informa-
tion technology companies. The borrower’s ability to
repay the loan may be adversely impacted by a num-
ber of factors and consequently the loan may not be
fully repaid. Furthermore, the Fund’s security interest
in any collateral over the borrower’s assets may not
realize a sufficient amount to make up any shortfall.

Need For Follow-On Investments in Portfolio
Companies - After its initial investment in a Portfolio
Company, the Fund may be called upon from time to
time to provide additional funds to such company or
have the opportunity to increase its investment in a
successful situation, e.g., the exercise of a warrant to
purchase common stock.There is no assurance that the
Fund will make, or have sufficient funds to make, fol-
low-on investments.Any decision by the Fund not to
make a follow-on investment or any inability on its
part to make such an investment may have a negative
impact on a Portfolio Company in need of such an
investment or may result in a missed opportunity for
the Fund to increase its participation in a successful
operation and may dilute the Fund’s equity interest in
or reduce the expected yield on its investment. In
many cases, if a Portfolio Company is unable to secure
a follow-on investment from its investors, it is likely
that the outcome will be the Portfolio Company’s
requirement to cease operations due to the lack of
working capital available to that Portfolio Company.

Competition for Investments -  The Fund encounters
competition from other persons or entities with simi-
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Companies at the time of the Fund’s initial acquisition
of their securities but are no longer eligible Portfolio
Companies, provided that the Fund has maintained a
substantial portion of its initial investment in such
companies; (v) securities received in exchange for or
distributed on or with respect to any of the foregoing;
and (vi) cash items, government securities and high-
quality, short-term debt. The Investment Company
Act also places restrictions on the nature of the trans-
actions in which, and the persons from whom, securi-
ties can be purchased in order for such securities to be
considered Qualifying Assets. As a general matter,
Qualifying Assets may only be purchased from the
issuer or an affiliate in a transaction not constituting a
public offering.The Fund may not purchase any secu-
rity on margin, except such short-term credits as are
necessary for the clearance of portfolio transactions, or
engage in short sales of securities.

The Fund is permitted by the Investment Company
Act, under specified conditions, to issue multiple class-
es of senior debt and a single class of preferred stock
senior to the common stock if its asset coverage, as
defined in the Investment Company Act, is at least
200% after the issuance of the debt or the senior
stockholders’ interests. In addition, provisions must be
made to prohibit any distribution to common share-
holders or the repurchase of any shares unless the asset
coverage ratio is at least 200% at the time of the dis-
tribution or repurchase.

The Fund generally may sell its securities at a price
that is below the prevailing net asset value per share
only upon the approval of the policy by shareholders
holding a majority of the shares issued by the Fund,
including a majority of shares held by nonaffiliated
shareholders.The Fund may, in accordance with cer-
tain conditions established by the SEC, sell shares
below net asset value in connection with the distribu-
tion of rights to all of its stockholders.The Fund may
also issue shares at less than net asset value in payment
of dividends to existing shareholders.

Since the Fund is a closed-end business development
company, stockholders have no right to present their
shares to the Fund for redemption. Recognizing the
possibility that the Fund’s shares might trade at a dis-
count, the Board of Directors of the Fund has deter-
mined that it would be in the best interest of stock-
holders for the Fund to be authorized to attempt to
reduce or eliminate a market value discount from net
asset value. Accordingly, the Fund from time to time

may, but is not required to, repurchase its shares
(including by means of tender offers) to attempt to
reduce or eliminate any discount or to increase the net
asset value of its shares, or both.

Many of the transactions involving the Fund and its
affiliates (as well as affiliates of such affiliates) require
the prior approval of a majority of the Independent
Directors and a majority of the Independent Directors
having no financial interest in the transactions.
However, certain transactions involving closely affiliat-
ed persons of the Fund would require the prior
approval of the SEC. In general (a) any person who
owns, controls or holds with power to vote more than
5% of the outstanding shares, (b) any director or exec-
utive officer and (c) any person who directly or indi-
rectly controls, is controlled by or is under common
control with such person, must obtain the prior
approval of a majority of the Independent Directors
and, in some situations, the prior approval of the SEC,
before engaging in certain transactions involving the
Fund or any company controlled by the Fund. In
accordance with the Investment Company Act, a
majority of the directors must be persons who are not
“interested persons” as defined in such act. Except for
certain transactions which must be approved by the
Independent Directors, the Investment Company Act
generally does not restrict transactions between the
Fund and its Portfolio Companies.

The Fund has applied for a license as a commercial
finance lender under the California Finance Lenders
Law, and anticipates that the application will be
processed in a timely manner by the California
Department of Corporations.
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industries. From time to time in recent years, the secu-
rities markets have experienced significant price and
volume fluctuations that have often been unrelated or
disproportionate to the operating performance of par-
ticular companies. These broad fluctuations may
adversely affect the market price of the common
stock. In addition, the Fund is subject to the risk of the
securities markets in which the portfolio securities of
the Fund are traded. Securities markets are cyclical and
the prices of the securities traded in such markets rise
and fall at various times. These cyclical periods may
extend over significant periods of time.

Regula t ion

The Fund has elected to be treated as a business devel-
opment company under the Investment Company
Act. Accordingly, it may provide for incentive com-
pensation in the form of one of the following: (i) a
performance fee based on the capital appreciation of
the Fund’s investments, (ii) a profit-sharing plan based
on the Fund’s income, or (iii) a stock option plan.The
Fund does not currently have any form of incentive
compensation in place.

The Fund may not withdraw its election to be treated
as a business development company without first
obtaining the approval of a majority in interest of its
shareholders. The following brief description of the
Investment Company Act is qualified in its entirety by
reference to the full text of the Investment Company
Act and the rules thereunder.

A business development company must be operated
for the purpose of investing in the securities of certain
present and former “eligible Portfolio Companies” or
certain bankrupt or insolvent companies and must
make available significant managerial assistance to
Portfolio Companies. An eligible Portfolio Company
generally is a company that (i) is organized under the
laws of, and has its principal place of business in, any
state or states, (ii) is not an investment company and
(iii)(a) does not have a class of securities registered on
an exchange or included in the Federal Reserve
Board’s over-the-counter margin list, (b) is actively
controlled by the business development company act-
ing either alone or as part of a group acting together
and an affiliated person of the business development
company is a member of the Portfolio Company’s
board of directors or (c) meets such other criteria as
may be established by the SEC. Control is presumed

to exist where the business development company
owns more than 25% of the outstanding voting secu-
rities of a Portfolio Company.

“Making available significant managerial assistance” is
defined under the Investment Company Act to mean
(i) any arrangement whereby a business development
company, through its directors, officers or employees,
offers to provide and, if accepted, does provide signif-
icant guidance and counsel concerning the manage-
ment, operations or business objectives or policies of a
Portfolio Company or (ii) the exercise of a controlling
influence over the management or policies of a
Portfolio Company by the business development
company acting individually or as part of a group of
which the business development company is a mem-
ber acting together which controls such company
(“Managed Company”). A business development
company may satisfy the requirements of clause (i)
with respect to a Portfolio Company by purchasing
securities of such a company as part of a group of
investors acting together if one person in such group
provides the type of assistance described in such clause.
However, the business development company will not
satisfy the general requirement of making available sig-
nificant managerial assistance if it in all cases provides
such assistance only indirectly through an investor
group. A business development company need only
extend significant managerial assistance with respect to
Portfolio Companies which are treated as Qualifying
Assets (as defined below) for the purpose of satisfying
the 70% test discussed below.

The Investment Company Act prohibits or restricts
the Fund from investing in certain types of companies,
such as brokerage firms, insurance companies, invest-
ment banking firms and investment companies.
Moreover, the Investment Company Act limits the
type of assets that the Fund may acquire to
“Qualifying Assets” and certain assets necessary for its
operations (such as office furniture, equipment and
facilities) if, at the time of the acquisition, less than
70% of the value of the Fund’s total assets consists of
qualifying assets.Qualifying Assets include (i) securities
of companies that were eligible Portfolio Companies
at the time that the Fund acquired their securities; (ii)
securities of companies that are actively controlled by
the Fund; (iii) securities of bankrupt or insolvent com-
panies that are not otherwise eligible Portfolio
Companies; (iv) securities acquired as follow-on
investments in companies that were eligible Portfolio
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proxy statements certain outside relationships of sever-
al of the Fund's directors.

The following events occurred after the fiscal year ended
October 31, 2002:

On December 19, 2002,Vice Chancellor Lamb grant-
ed Millenco's motion for summary judgment on its
claim that the directors breached their duty of disclo-
sure under Delaware law by omitting material facts
concerning the business relationship among three of
the directors (directors Grillos, Gerhard and Hughes)
at eVineyard, Inc. (a privately held corporation) from
the 2001 and 2002 proxy statements. Director Grillos,
an "interested" director of the Fund by reason of being
its CEO and managing member of the Former Sub-
Advisor, was Chairman of the Board and Chairman of
the Compensation Committee of eVineyard at the
same time that directors Gerhard and Hughes, "non-
interested" directors of the Fund, were officers of
eVineyard. Vice Chancellor Lamb, finding that the
omissions rendered the proxy statements false and mis-
leading, ordered the Fund to hold new elections for
the seats held by directors Grillos and Gerhard and
former director Freudenthal, to be conducted either in
conjunction with the Fund's upcoming annual meet-
ing in 2003 (at which two other director seats are up
for election) if that meeting is held within 60 days of
the date of the Vice Chancellor's order, or separately
on or before February 15, 2003. The Vice Chancellor
noted without comment Millenco's statement that the
remaining claims in Millenco's latest amended com-
plaint were no longer at issue in the case.

On December 22, 2002 the Fund filed a motion for
re-argument of the Vice Chancellor’s order with
respect to the date by which the Fund must hold an
annual or special meeting for the election to fill the
three directors’ seats. On January 8, 2003, the Vice
Chancellor issued an order granting the Fund’s
motion to re-argue and extending the last date for that
election to February 28, 2003.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTTERS TO
A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of security hold-
ers during the fourth quarter of fiscal year ended
October 31, 2002.

23

ITEM 3 , ITEM 4  &  ITEM 5

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Fund does not own any real estate or other phys-
ical property. Its principal executive office, located at
3000 Sand Hill Road, Building 1, Suite 155, Menlo
Park, California 94025, is occupied under a three-year
lease, which is scheduled to expire on October 31,
2005.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On February 20, 2002, Millenco LP ("Millenco’), a
Cayman-based hedge fund, filed a complaint in the
United States District Court for the District of
Delaware against the former Advisor and the Fund.
The Fund was designated a "nominal" defendant for
purposes of effectuating the relief sought in the com-
plaint.The complaint alleges that the fees received by
the former Advisor for the year prior to the filing of
the complaint were excessive, in violation of Section
36(b) of the Investment Company Act of 1940.
Neither the former Sub-Advisor nor any of the Fund's
directors or officers is named as a defendant in the
case.The Fund moved to dismiss the complaint against
it, on the ground that it may not be named as a defen-
dant in a Section 36(b) suit. During a telephonic
hearing with the court, Millenco said it did not
oppose dismissal of the suit against the Fund, but it
vigorously opposed dismissal or transfer of the suit
against the former Advisor.

On April 3, 2002, Millenco filed a complaint against
the Fund in the Court of Chancery, New Castle
County, Delaware, seeking a judicial determination of
the stockholder's vote of March 27, 2002, to approve
investment advisory agreements between the Fund
and the former Advisor and between the Fund and the
former Sub-Advisor. On April 5, 2002, Millenco
moved to accelerate the trial of the case. However, on
April 8, 2002, the Fund informed the Chancery Court
that the Fund's Board of Directors decided that the
proposals for shareholder approval of the advisory and
sub-advisory agreements had failed, that a stockhold-
er's meeting would not be reconvened on this matter,
and that plaintiff had withdrawn its request to acceler-
ate the trial. Subsequently,on April 17,2002, the Fund
moved to dismiss the suit as moot. Millenco never

filed a response to that motion, and the Court never
acted upon it.

On July 30, 2002, Millenco filed an amended com-
plaint against the Fund and the Fund’s directors in the
Court of Chancery, New Castle County, Delaware,
seeking to (i) invalidate the election of two of the
Fund’s four directors, John M. Grillos and Larry
Gerhard, at the 2001 and 2002 Annual Meetings of
Stockholders, to three-year terms expiring 2004 and
2005, respectively; and the election of former director
Peter Freudenthal, at the 2001 Annual Meeting, to a
three-year term expiring 2004; and (ii) require the
Fund to hold a special Meeting of Stockholders, for
the purpose of holding new elections to fill the board
seats currently held by Mr. Grillos and Mr. Gerhard
and the board seat vacated by Peter Freudenthal due to
his resignation in June 2002.

On August 21, 2002, Judge Farnan of the U.S. District
Court for the District of Delaware issued an order
granting the Fund’s motion to dismiss the Fund from
the February 20, 2002 federal lawsuit. Judge Farnan
agreed with the Fund that an action to recover excess
compensation under Section 36(b) of the Investment
Company Act of 1940 may not be brought against any
person other than the recipient of such compensation,
and Millenco did not allege that the Fund was a recip-
ient of such compensation.

On August 23, 2002, Millenco moved for leave to file
a second amended complaint in Chancery Court, in
which it proposed to add another allegation to its first
amended complaint. On September 4, 2002,Millenco
moved for leave to file a re-written version of its pro-
posed second amended complaint, in which it added
two more allegations to its first amended complaint.

On September 11, 2002, Vice Chancellor Stephen
Lamb of the Chancery Court (1) granted the Fund's
motion to dismiss the claims in the first amended
complaint for an expedited proceeding to invalidate
the director elections and order new elections, (2)
denied Millenco's motion for a "status quo" order that
would have prevented the Fund from internally hiring
a Fund manager without shareholder approval, (3)
allowed Millenco to file the September 4th version of
its second amended complaint, subject to a motion by
the Fund to dismiss several of the claims in it, and (4)
denied the Fund's motion to dismiss a breach of fidu-
ciary duty claim in the second amended complaint
based on the Fund's alleged failure to disclose in past
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ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S
COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The Fund's shares of common stock began to trade on
the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) on June 26,
2000, under the symbol "MVC". The Fund had
approximately 13,000 shareholders at January 9, 2003.

The following table reflects, for the periods indicat-
ed the high and low closing prices per share of the
Fund's common stock on the New York Stock
Exchange, by quarter.

Quarter
Ended High Low

Fiscal Year 2002

01/31/02 $10.0600 $ 9.1800

04/30/02 $10.0600 $ 8.8000

07/31/02 $ 9.5000 $ 7.5000

10/31/02 $ 8.0500 $ 7.2500

Fiscal Year 2001

01/31/01 $12.8750 $ 9.9375

04/30/01 $12.4900 $10.1600

07/31/01 $12.2000 $10.7000

10/31/01 $11.0500 $ 9.2000

Div idends

As a regulated investment company under Subchapter
M of the Code, the Fund is required to distribute to
its shareholders, in a timely manner, at least 90% of its
taxable net investment income each year. If the Fund
distributes, in a timely manner, 98% of its taxable net
capital gains and 98% of its taxable net investment
income each year (as well as any portion of the respec-
tive 2% balances not distributed in the previous year),
it will not be subject to the 4% non-deductible feder-
al excise tax on certain undistributed income of regu-
lated investment companies.

On December 4, 2001, the Fund announced an ordi-
nary income cash dividend of $0.044163 per share,
payable on January 3, 2002, to stockholders of record



ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDI-
TION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This report contains certain statements of a forward-
looking nature relating to future events or the future
financial performance of the Fund and its investment
in Portfolio Companies.Words such as "may," "will,"
"expect," "believe," "anticipate," "intend," "could,"
"estimate," "might," or "continue" or the negative or
other variations thereof or comparable terminology
are intended to identify forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements are included in this report
pursuant to the "Safe Harbor" provision of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such state-
ments are only predictions and the actual events or
results may differ materially from the results discussed
in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could
cause or contribute to such differences include, but are
not limited to, those relating to investment capital
demand, pricing, market acceptance, the effect of eco-
nomic conditions, litigation and the effect of regulato-
ry proceedings, competitive forces, the results of
financing and investing efforts, the ability to complete
transactions and other risks identified below or in the
Fund’s filings with the Commission. Readers are cau-
tioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-
looking statements, which speak only as of the date
hereof.The Fund undertakes no obligation to publicly
revise these forward-looking statements to reflect
events or circumstances occurring after the date here-
of or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.
The following analysis of the financial condition and
results of operation of the Fund should be read in con-
junction with the Financial Statements, the Notes
thereto and the other financial information included
elsewhere in this report.

Overv iew

The Fund is a non-diversified investment company
that is regulated as a business development company
under the Investment Company Act. The Fund pro-
vides equity and debt financing to privately held ven-
ture capital backed information technology compa-
nies. The primary investment objective is to achieve
long-term capital appreciation in the value of its
investments.
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at the close of business on December 10, 2001.The Fund went ex-dividend on December 6, 2001. Distributions
can be made payable by the Fund in the form of either a cash distribution or a stock dividend. On the Fund’s
ex-dividend date, the Fund was trading on the NYSE at a discount to net asset value. In accordance with the
Dividend Reinvestment Plan, the Dividend Distribution Agent purchased shares on the open market of the
NYSE for those shareholders electing to take their distributions in the form of stock dividends.

The Fund is investing in companies that it believes have a high potential for capital appreciation, and the Fund
intends to realize the majority of its profits upon the sale of its investments in Portfolio Companies.Consequently,
it is likely that few or none of the companies in which the Fund invests will have established policies of paying
annual dividends.The Fund also intends to invest its capital in debt securities by providing debt financing to late
stage venture capital backed Information Technology companies. In a typical loan the lender receives interest on
the loans, origination fees, as well as warrants, or other equity instruments, for the purchase of the borrowers
stock.

The Fund reserves the right to retain net long-term capital gains in excess of net short-term capital losses for
reinvestment or to pay contingencies and expenses. Such retained amounts, if any, will be taxable to the Fund as
long-term capital gains and shareholders will be able to claim their proportionate share of the federal income
taxes paid by the Fund on such gains as a credit against their own federal income tax liabilities. Stockholders
will also be entitled to increase the adjusted tax basis of their Fund shares by the difference between their
undistributed capital gains and their tax credit.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2002 and 2001 and the period from
March 31, 2000 (commencement of operations) through October 31, 2000 are derived from the financial state-
ments, which have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP, independent accountants.The data should be
read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto and "Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" included elsewhere in this report.

Period From
Year Ended Year Ended March 31, 2000

Oct. 31, 2002 Oct. 31, 2001   To Oct. 31, 2000
Total investment income $ 3,739,893 $ 9,046,526 $ 9,325,822
Total operating expenses $ 6,861,850 $ 7,388,061 $ 4,615,284
Net investment (loss) income $ (3,121,957) $ 1,658,465 $ 4,710,538
Net realized (loss) gain on investment transactions $ (33,469,122) $ 5,123 $ (789)
Net unrealized depreciation on investment transactions $ (21,765,310) $ (52,994,121) $ (4,913,010)
Dividends declared per share $ 0.04 $ 0.34 $ 0

Balance Sheet data:
Total assets $ 196,511,000 $ 255,049,783 $ 312,114,878
Total liabilities $ 1,124,523 $ 578,227 $ 668,139
Total Shareholders Equity $ 195,386,477 $ 254,471,556 $ 311,446,739
Net asset value per share $ 11.84 $ 15.42 $ 18.88
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( I tem 5 cont inued)  

Historically the Fund’s investing activities have focused
on private equity securities. Generally, private equity
investments are structured as preferred stock.
Generally portfolio companies do not pay dividends
and consequently current income is not a significant
part of the equity portfolio. Private equity investments
typically range from $5 million to $10 million and the
Fund generally expects these investments to achieve
liquidity within three to five years. Typically a cash
return on the investment is not received until a liq-
uidity event occurs.

On September 30, 2002 the Fund announced a new
strategic initiative to enhance shareholder value by
investing its capital in debt securities by providing debt
financing to late stage venture capital backed informa-
tion technology companies. By investing in debt secu-
rities, the Fund will seek to obtain current interest
income from these financings, as well as seek long
term capital growth through the appreciation in the
value of warrants or other equity instruments that it
will receive in connection with making the loan.

We expect our loans typically will range from $3 mil-
lion to $10 million, mature in no more than five years
and accrue interest at a fixed or variable rate that
exceeds the prime rate. Our loans generally will be
collateralized by a security interest in the borrower’s
assets. Interest payments will be due monthly or quar-
terly with amortization of the principal generally
being deferred for a period of time usually one year.
We anticipate receiving warrants and an origination
fee in consideration for making the loan.

We had not funded any debt financing under this ini-
tiative as of the end of our most recently completed
fiscal year, but anticipate it becoming a significant part
of our business in the future.

Genera l  Investment  C l imate

During the reporting year, we continued to encounter
a challenging investment climate characterized by
reduced M&A activity and public markets that were
all but closed to new technology issues. Moreover,
concerns regarding geo-political risk and corporate
profitability led to continued declines in both the pub-
lic and private equity markets. Our cautious invest-
ment pace, as reflected in the new investments made
throughout the Fund’s fiscal year 2002, is indicative of



due to the reduction in management fees paid to the
former Advisor in part due to the resignation of the
former Advisor on June 19, 2002 and the internaliza-
tion of all management and administrative functions as
of that date, and in part due to the decline in overall
compensation level paid to the former Advisor due to
the decline in the net asset value of the Fund.

Other significant components of operating expenses
include salaries and benefits for the period from June
19,2002 through October 31,2002 of  $696,000, con-
sulting and public relation fees for the period from
June 19,2002 through October 31,2002 of  $547,000,
directors fees for the period from June 19, 2002
through October 31, 2002 of  $307,000, professional
fees, for the period from June 19, 2002 through
October 31, 2002 comprising of audit fees of
$155,000 and legal fees of  $998,000, insurance for the
period from June 19, 2002 through October 31, 2002
of  $134,000 and facilities for the period from June 19,
2002 through October 31, 2002 of  $166,000.Prior to
June 19, 2002, all Fund expenses, including compen-
sation to the directors and officers, were paid by the
former Advisor.

On an annualized basis operating expenses are not
expected to increase, though it is not possible to pre-
dict with any degree of accuracy the future level of
legal costs associated with contesting the various
actions brought against the Fund.

Realized Gains and Losses on Sales of Portfolio
Securit ies

For the year ended October 31, 2002, the Fund had a
net realized loss of  $33.5 million. Such loss was real-
ized mainly from the transactions involving the assets
of infoUSA.com, Inc. being acquired by infoUSA, Inc.,
the parent company of infoUSA.com, Inc., resulting in
a realized loss of $3.3 million, the disbursement of
assets from EXP Systems, Inc. to its preferred share-
holders resulting in a realized loss of  $8 million, the
write-off of Personic Software, Inc. ("Personic") due to
the irreversible dilution of the Fund’s equity position
resulting in a realized loss of  $10.8 million, the write-
off of InfoImage, Inc. ("InfoImage") due to the com-
pany filing for Chapter 7 of the US Code resulting in
a realized loss of  $ 2.4 million, the write-off of
IQdestination due to the cessation of operations and
subsequent dissolution of the company resulting in a

realized loss of  $3.5 million, the acquisition of the
assets of Annuncio Software, Inc. ("Annuncio") by
PeopleSoft resulting in a realized loss of  $3.4 million,
and the write-off of Mediaprise, Inc. ("Mediaprise")
due to the cessation of operations and subsequent dis-
solution of the company resulting in a realized loss of
$2 million. Management expects the unrealized loss of
$6 million relating to the Fund’s investments in
ShopEaze Systems, Inc. to be realized as soon as disso-
lution papers are completed and signed by the com-
pany’s respective inside investors.

For the year ended October 31, 2001, the Fund had a
net realized gain of  $5,000. There were no portfolio
company exit events during the year ended October 31,
2001 to create any significant realized gains or losses.

Unrea l ized Apprec ia t ion and Deprec ia t ion of
Por t fo l io  Secur i t ies

During the year ended October 31, 2002, the Fund
had a net increase in unrealized depreciation on invest-
ment transactions of $21.8 million. Such depreciation
resulted mainly from the Valuation Committee of the
Board of Directors’ (the "Valuation Committee") deci-
sion to mark down the value of the Fund’s investments
in Actelis Networks, Inc., AuctionWatch.com, Inc.,
BlueStar Solutions, Inc., Cidera, Inc., DataPlay, Inc.,
Endymion Systems, Inc., Foliofn, Inc., Ishoni
Networks, Inc., Pagoo, Inc., SafeStone Technologies
PLC, ShopEaze Systems, Inc., Sonexis, Inc., and Yaga,
Inc. The Valuation Committee decided to write down
the carrying value of the investments for a variety of
reasons including, but not limited to, company per-
formance, prospects of a particular sector, the likeli-
hood of a company being able to attract further
financing, or a third party valuation event.

For the year ended October 31, 2002, the increase in
the Fund’s retained deficit was $59.1 million and the
total retained deficit since inception is  $116.3 mil-
lion; the retained deficit is due primarily to the
Fund’s mark down of the valuations of certain
Portfolio Company investments, as private compa-
nies experienced a decline in valuations similar to
that of public companies. Management expects the
unrealized losses of the Fund’s investments in
ShopEaze Systems, Inc. to be realized as soon as dis-
solution papers are completed and signed by the
company’s respective inside investors.
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our concern over the uncertainty in the market, lim-
ited exit opportunities, and what we perceived to be a
general overvaluation of private equity deals during
the period.

Recent data from Venture Economics indicates that
the amount of venture money being deployed is at
pre-1998 levels, demonstrating that venture capitalists
by and large continue to stay on the sidelines. The
Fund’s investment pace was similarly reduced as we
focused our efforts on ensuring the continued finan-
cial well-being of our portfolio companies. Toward
that end, we have worked extensively with our com-
panies to help them manage cash burn through
restructurings and cost reductions. Our strategy from
a portfolio management perspective has been to con-
centrate on the companies that we feel are the most
capable of emerging strongly from the downturn
and, where possible, increase our ownership stake in
those companies.

With respect to new investments, we took a defensive
posture over the last year as valuations in the private
equity market continued to decline. We intend to
maintain extreme selectivity when considering new
opportunities, seeking to ensure that prospective com-
panies are appropriately valued and well equipped to
face the current challenging operating conditions.
That being said, we believe it is a good time to make
strategic investments in private equity since valuations
have become more attractive as we near the bottom of
a venture cycle. It is our opinion that the Fund is well
positioned to take advantage of this situation, especial-
ly given our significant cash position.

Nevertheless, tough economic conditions and inactive
capital markets meant that we had to continue to
write down the carrying value for a number of our
investments during the reporting period.
Furthermore, unhealthy IPO and M&A markets have
limited exit opportunities making it difficult for ven-
ture capitalists to realize gains on investments. It is for
this reason that we view our recent addition of a ven-
ture debt strategy as an appropriate complement to the
equity portion of the portfolio. Venture lending can
generate interest income, which in turn can help
bridge the gap of increased liquidity time horizons for
venture equity investments.

Looking ahead, we are optimistic that the economy
and market are demonstrating signs of recovery. The

fact that the U.S. economy experienced increased
growth in GDP during the reporting period is
encouraging, especially given the dramatic blow 
we were dealt on September 11 of last year. We 
were particularly pleased that the M&A market saw
some resurgence towards the end of the reporting
period. With the addition of our new venture debt
strategy and a substantial cash position to invest,
we are confident that the Fund should be poised to
benefit from an opportunistic investment climate and
improving market.

Resul ts  o f  Opera t ions

As explained in Item 1 under the section entitled
"Organization", the Fund, from inception through
June 19, 2002 operated under an advisory agreement
with meVC Advisers.The Fund was charged a man-
agement fee at an annual rate of 2.5% of the weekly
net assets of the Fund, by the former Adviser.The for-
mer Advisor agreed to pay all Fund expenses above
and beyond the 2.5% paid to the former Adviser by
the Fund.The former Advisor resigned without notice
on June 19, 2002 and as a result the Board of Directors
for the Fund voted to internalize all management and
administrative functions of the Fund effective imme-
diately. Consequently since June 19, 2002 the Fund
directly incurs all of its own operating expenses for all
office space, facilities, equipment and personnel neces-
sary to conduct its business including management of
the Fund’s investments.

Investment  Income 

Dividend and interest income for the years ended
October 31, 2002 and 2001 were $3.7 million and
$9.0 million, respectively. The reduction in dividend
and interest income during the year ended October
31, 2002 was primarily due to the redeployment of
both cash available for short term investing and the
decline in short-term interest rates.

Opera t ing Expenses

Operating expenses for the years ended October 31,
2002 and 2001 were $6.9 million and $7.4 million,
respectively. The reduction in operating expenses dur-
ing the year ended October 31, 2002 was primarily
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AUCTIONWATCH.COM, INC.

AuctionWatch.com, Inc. ("AuctionWatch"), San
Bruno, California, enables small businesses and entre-
preneurs to build Internet sales channels by providing
software solutions to help these merchants efficiently
market, sell and distribute their products.

On June 20, 2000, the Fund invested  $5.5 million in
AuctionWatch consisting of 1,047,619 shares of Series
C Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series C Preferred
Stock") at $5.25 per share.

On April 20, 2001, the Valuation Committee marked
down the valuation of the Fund’s $5.5 million invest-
ment in the Series C Preferred Stock issue of
AuctionWatch by 25%. The Fund’s investment then
consisted of 1,047,619 shares of Series C Preferred
Stock at a valuation of $3.94 per share.

On July 25, 2001, the Valuation Committee marked
down the valuation of the Fund’s $5.5 million invest-
ment in the Series C Preferred Stock issue of
AuctionWatch by another 25%. The Fund’s invest-
ment then consisted of 1,047,619 shares of Series C
Preferred Stock at a valuation of $2.625 per share.

On October 23, 2001, the Valuation Committee
marked down the remaining value of the Fund’s $5.5
million investment in the Series C Preferred Stock
issue of AuctionWatch by approximately 16%.

At October 31, 2001, the Fund’s investment then con-
sisted of 1,047,619 shares of Series C Preferred Stock
at a valuation of $2.2148 per share.

On November 19, 2001, the Valuation Committee
marked down the remaining valuation of the Fund’s
investment in the Series C Preferred Stock issue of
AuctionWatch by 11%. The Fund’s investment then
consisted of 1,047,619 shares of Series C Preferred
Stock at a valuation of $1.9688 per share.

On January 31, 2002 the Fund entered into a fol-
low-on investment at a cost of $1.1 million in
AuctionWatch, consisting of 6,443,188 shares of Series
A Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series A Preferred
Stock") at $0.176 per share.

The Series A ranks senior, with respect to liquidation
preference, to any series of Preferred Stock issued
prior to the Series A and senior to the Common
Stock. In the event of a Qualified Initial Public
Offering ("Qualified IPO"), the Series A Preferred
Stock, as converted to common stock, will not be

transferred in a public distribution prior to one hun-
dred and eighty days after the date of the final prospec-
tus used in such Qualified IPO.

Pursuant to the terms of the financing, the Series C
Preferred Stock was converted into 10,476 shares 
of Common Stock, along with the entirety of
AuctionWatch’s previously outstanding Series A
Preferred Stock, Series B Convertible Preferred
Stock, and all other Series C Preferred Stock.

At October 31, 2002, the Fund’s investment in
AuctionWatch consisted of 10,476 shares of Common
Stock and 6,443,188 shares of Series A Preferred Stock
at a cost of  $6.6 million. The investment has been
assigned a fair value of approximately $1.1 million, or
$0.00 per share for the Common Stock and $0.176
per share for the Series A Preferred Stock, respective-
ly. Nino Marakovic, an Officer of the Fund, serves as a
director of AuctionWatch.

BLUESTAR SOLUTIONS, INC. (FORMERLY eONLINE, INC.)

BlueStar Solutions, Inc. (formerly eOnline, Inc.)
("BlueStar"), Cupertino, California, is a provider of
enterprise applications outsourcing services.
BlueStar delivers complete end-to-end services for
managing SAP applications.

On May 26, 2000, the Fund invested  $10 million
in BlueStar, consisting of 1,360,544 shares of Series
C Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series C Preferred
Stock") at $7.35 per share. The Fund also received
136,054 warrants to purchase 136,054 shares of
Series C Preferred Stock at a purchase price of
$7.35 per share (as adjusted). The warrants expire at
the earlier of (i) May 26, 2003 or (ii) BlueStar’s
Qualified IPO.

On October 23, 2001, the Valuation Committee
marked down the valuation of the Fund’s approxi-
mately $10,000,000 investment in the Series C
Preferred Stock issue of BlueStar by 75%.

At October 31, 2001, the Fund’s investment was
assigned a fair value of $ 2.5 million and consisted of
1,360,544 shares of Series C Preferred Stock at a val-
uation of $1.8375 per share and 136,054 warrants at a
valuation of $0.00 per share.

On February 28,2002 the Fund entered into a follow-
on investment of $3 million in BlueStar, consisting of
4,545,455 shares of Series D Convertible Preferred
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During the year ended October 31, 2001, the Fund
had a net increase in unrealized depreciation of $53
million. Such depreciation also resulted mainly from
the Fund’s mark down of the value of the Fund’s
investments in certain Portfolio Companies. During
the year ended October 31, 2001, the increase in the
Fund’s retained deficit was $57 million and the total
retained deficit since inception was $57.2 million.
Such deficit also resulted mainly from the mark down
of the value of the Fund’s investments in certain port-
folio companies.

Por t fo l io  Investments

At October 31, 2002, the cost of equity and equity-
linked security investments held by the Fund to date
was $127.5 million, and their aggregate fair value was
estimated to be $50.1 million. In addition the Fund
held subordinated notes in portfolio companies with a
cost of $6.3 million and aggregate fair value of $4.1
million.While the current values of certain Portfolio
Companies have been greatly reduced, Management
believes that a number of the companies identified
have upside potential for long-term growth in sales
and earnings.The Investment Team continuously eval-
uates opportunities to realize value for the Fund and
its stockholders. In that regard the Investment Team
will periodically evaluate potential acquisitions,
financing transactions, initial public offerings, strategic
alliances and sale opportunities involving the Fund’s
Portfolio Companies.These transactions,while reflect-
ed in the Fund’s calculation of net asset value, are gen-
erally not disclosed to the Fund’s stockholders and the
investing public until such time as the transactions are
publicly announced or completed, as the case may be.

At October 31, 2002, the Fund had active investments
in the following Portfolio Companies:

0-IN DESIGN AUTOMATION, INC.

0-In Design Automation, Inc. ("0-In"), San Jose,
California, is an electronic design automation (EDA)
company providing functional verification products
that help verify multi-million gate application specific
integrated circuit (ASIC) and system-on-chip (SOC)
chip designs. 0-In products extend the value of simu-
lation by using assertion-based verification technolo-
gy.Assertion-based technology uses the design's inter-

nal structure to provide more thorough verification by
attacking the primary problems in functional verifica-
tion – inadequate observability and controllability.

On November 29, 2001 the Fund invested  $4 million
in 0-In, consisting of 2,239,291 shares of Series E
Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series E Preferred
Stock ") at $1.7863 per share.

The Series E Preferred Stock ranks senior, with
respect to liquidation preference, to any series of
Preferred Stock issued prior to the Series E Preferred
Stock and senior to the Common Stock. In the event
of a Qualified Initial Public Offering (Qualified IPO),
the Series E Preferred Stock, as converted to common
stock, will not be transferred in a public distribution
prior to one hundred and eighty days after the date of
the final prospectus used in such Qualified IPO.

At October 31, 2002, the Fund’s investment in 0-In
consisted of 2,239,291 shares of Series E Preferred
Stock at a cost of approximately $4 million. The
investment has been assigned a fair value of $4 million,
or $1.7863 per share. Mr. Gerhard, a director of the
Fund through January 16, 2003, when he resigned,
serves as a director of 0-In.

ACTELIS NETWORKS, INC.

Actelis Networks, Inc. ("Actelis"), Fremont,California,
enables telecommunications carriers and service
providers to deliver high-speed, high-quality broad-
band services over the existing copper wire infrastruc-
ture. On May 21, 2001, the Fund invested $5 million
in Actelis, consisting of 1,506,025 shares of Series C
Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series C Preferred
Stock") at $3.32 per share.

At October 31, 2001, the Fund’s investment in Actelis
was assigned a fair value, which approximated cost, of
$5 million.

On October 29, 2002, the Valuation Committee of the
Board of Directors (the "Valuation Committee")
marked down the value of the Fund’s investment in
the Series C Preferred Stock issue of Actelis by 50%.
At October 31, 2002, the Fund’s investment in Actelis
consisted of 1,506,025 shares of Series C Preferred
Stock at a cost of approximately $5 million. The
investment has been assigned a fair value of approxi-
mately $2.5 million, or $1.66 per share.
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DATAPLAY, INC.

DataPlay, Inc. ("DataPlay"), Boulder, Colorado, is a
developer of new ways of enabling consumers to
record and play digital content.

On June 4, 2001, the Fund invested $7.5 million in
DataPlay consisting of 2,500,000 shares of Series D
Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series D Preferred
Stock") at $3.00 per share.

On October 31, 2001, the Fund’s investment, assigned
a fair value of $7.5 million, consisted of 2,500,000
shares of Series D Preferred Stock at a valuation of
$3.00 per share.

On May 9, 2002 the Fund entered into a follow-on
investment of $2,000,000 in DataPlay. The Fund’s
investment consisted of a Convertible Promissory
Note (the "Note") with a face value of $2,000,000
and a stated interest rate of 6% per annum.The Note
is due and payable on May 10, 2005.

On June 14, 2002 the Fund entered into a follow-on
investment of $500,000 in DataPlay. The Fund’s
investment consisted of a Convertible Promissory
Note (the "Note") with a face value of $500,000 and
a stated interest rate of 6% per annum.The Note is due
and payable on June 17, 2005.

On June 26, 2002 the Fund entered into a follow-on
investment of $1,000,000 in DataPlay. The Fund’s
investment consisted of a Convertible Promissory
Note (the "Note") with a face value of $1,000,000
and a stated interest rate of 6% per annum.The Note
is due and payable on June 27, 2005.

On July 31, 2002, the Valuation Committee marked
down the value of the Fund’s investment in the Series
D Preferred Stock of DataPlay by 66%. The Fund’s
investment then consisted of 2,500,000 shares of Series
D Preferred Stock at a valuation of $1.00 per share.

On August 15, 2002 the Fund entered into a follow-
on investment of $200,000 in DataPlay. The Fund’s
investment consisted of a Convertible Promissory
Note (the "Note") with a face value of $200,000 and
a stated interest rate of 6% per annum.The Note is due
and payable on August 16, 2005.

On August 23, 2002 the Fund entered into a follow-
on investment of $400,000 in DataPlay. The Fund’s
investment consisted of a Convertible Promissory
Note (the "Note") with a face value of $400,000 and

a stated interest rate of 6% per annum.The Note is due
and payable on August 26, 2005.

On August 30, 2002 the Fund entered into a follow-
on investment of $200,000 in DataPlay. The Fund’s
investment consisted of a Convertible Promissory
Note (the "Note") with a face value of $200,000 and
a stated interest rate of 6% per annum.The Note is due
and payable on September 3, 2005.

On September 23, 2002 the Fund entered into a fol-
low-on investment of $200,000 in DataPlay. The
Fund’s investment consisted of a Convertible
Promissory Note (the "Note") with a face value of
$200,000 and a stated interest rate of 6% per annum.
The Note is due and payable on September 24, 2005.

On October 10, 2002, the Valuation Committee
marked down the remaining value of the Fund’s
investment in the Series D Preferred Stock of
DataPlay by 100%. The Fund’s investment then con-
sisted of 2,500,000 shares of Series D Convertible
Preferred Stock ("Series D Preferred Stock") at a val-
uation of $0.00 per share.

On October 30, 2002, the Valuation Committee
marked down the value of the Fund’s investment in all
of the Promissory Notes issued by DataPlay by 50%.

At October 31, 2002, the Fund’s total investment in
DataPlay, with a cost basis of approximately
$12,000,000, consisted of 2,500,000 shares of Series D
Preferred Stock and seven promissory notes with a
combined cost of approximately $4,500,000. The
investment has been assigned a fair value of approxi-
mately $2,250,000, comprising $0.00 per share for the
Series D Preferred Stock and 50% of the face value of
the promissory notes.

On November 20, 2002, DataPlay filed for bankruptcy
under Chapter 11 of the US Code.

ENDYMION SYSTEMS, INC.

Endymion Systems, Inc. ("Endymion "), Oakland,
California, is a single source supplier for strategic,web-
enabled, end-to-end business solutions that help its
customers leverage Internet technologies to drive
growth and increase productivity.

On June 2, 2000, the Fund invested $7 million in
Endymion consisting of 7,156,760 shares of Series A
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Stock ("Series D Preferred Stock") at $0.66 per share.

The Series D Preferred Stock ranks senior,with respect
to liquidation preference, to any series of Preferred
Stock issued prior to the Series D and senior to the
Common Stock. In the event of a Qualified IPO, the
Series D Preferred Stock, as converted to common
stock, will not be transferred in a public distribution
prior to one hundred and eighty days after the date of
the final prospectus used in such Qualified IPO.

Pursuant to the terms of the financing, (i) the Fund’s
Series C Preferred Stock was recapitalized in an 1-for-
11 reverse split, along with the entirety of BlueStar’s
Common Stock, Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock, Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, and all
other Series C Preferred Stock, and (ii) the Fund’s
Series C Preferred Stock was partially effected by a
"pay-to-play" provision pursuant to which the pre-
ferred stock of certain existing preferred shareholders
was converted to Common Stock, along with certain
of BlueStar’s  Series A Convertible Preferred Stock,
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, and other Series
C Preferred Stock.

At October 31, 2002, the Fund’s investment in
BlueStar, with a cost of  $13 million, has been assigned
a fair value of $4.5 million, consisting of 74,211 shares
of Series C Preferred Stock at $20.2125 per share,
4,545,455 shares of Series D Preferred Stock at $0.66
per share, 49,474 shares of Common Stock at $0.00
per share, and 136,054 warrants to purchase 136,054
shares of Series C Preferred Stock at a purchase price
of $7.35 per share (as adjusted) carried at $0.

CBCA, INC.

CBCA, Inc. ("CBCA"), Oakland, California, has
developed an automated health benefit claims process-
ing and payment system that includes full website
functionality.

During April 2002, the Fund invested approximately
$10,000,000 in CBCA, consisting of 4,774,636 shares
of Series E Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series E
Preferred Stock") at $2.0944 per share.

The Series E Preferred Stock ranks senior, with
respect to liquidation preference, to any series of
Preferred Stock issued prior to the Series E Preferred
Stock and senior to the Common Stock. In the event

of a Qualified IPO, the Series E Preferred Stock, as
converted to common stock, will not be transferred in
a public distribution prior to one hundred and eighty
days after the date of the final prospectus used in such
Qualified IPO.

At October 31, 2002, the Fund’s investment in CBCA
consisted of 4,774,636 shares of Series E Preferred
Stock with a cost of approximately $10 million. The
investment has been assigned a fair value of approxi-
mately $10,000,000, or $2.0944 per share. Mr. Grillos,
the Chief Executive Officer of the Fund, serves as a
director of CBCA.

CIDERA, INC.

Cidera, Inc. ("Cidera"), Laurel, Maryland, provides
satellite-based delivery of broadband content to the
edge of the Internet.

On August 31, 2000, the Fund invested $7.5 million
in Cidera consisting of 857,192 shares of Series D
Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series D Preferred
Stock") at $8.7495 per share.

On April 20, 2001, the Valuation Committee marked
down the valuation of the Fund’s $7.5 million invest-
ment in the Series D Preferred Stock issue of Cidera
by 50%.

On October 31, 2001, the Fund’s investment, assigned
a fair value of $3.8 million, consisted of 857,192 shares
of Series D Preferred Stock at a valuation of $4.3748
per share.

On January 31, 2002, the Valuation Committee
marked down the remaining value of the Fund’s
investment in the Series D Preferred Stock by 76%.
The Fund’s investment then consisted of 857,192
shares of Series D Preferred Stock at a valuation of
$1.0499 per share.

On April 19, 2002, the Valuation Committee marked
down the remaining value of the Fund’s investment in
the Series D Preferred Stock to 56%. The Fund’s
investment then consisted of 857,192 shares of Series
D Preferred Stock at a valuation of $0.5833 per share.

At October 31, 2002, the Fund’s investment in Cidera
consisted of 857,192 shares of Series D Preferred
Stock with a cost of approximately $7,500,000. The
investment has been assigned a fair value of approxi-
mately $500,000, or $0.5833 per share.
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At October 31, 2002, the Fund’s investment in EXP
consisted of 36,750 shares of Series C Preferred Stock
with a cost of $210,000. The investment has been
assigned a fair value of $25,000, or $0.6803 per share.

FOLIO fn , INC.

FOLIOfn, Inc. ("FOLIOfn"), Vienna, Virginia, is a
financial services technology company that delivers
leading-edge investment solutions to financial services
firms and investors.Through its registered broker-deal-
er subsidiary, FOLIOfn Investments, Inc., the company
offers an integrated brokerage platform featuring its
unique basket-trading capability and state-of-the-art
execution, clearance and settlement services.

On June 21, 2000, the Fund invested $15 million in
FOLIOfn, Inc., consisting of 5,802,259 shares of Series
C Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series C Preferred
Stock") at $2.585 per share.

On July 25, 2001, the Valuation Committee marked
down the valuation of the Fund’s $15 million invest-
ment in the Series C Preferred Stock issue of
FOLIOfn by 25%. The Fund’s investment then con-
sisted of 5,802,259 shares of Series C Preferred Stock
at a valuation of $1.9389 per share.

On October 26, 2001, the Valuation Committee
marked down the valuation of the Fund’s $15 million
investment in the Series C Preferred Stock issue of
FOLIOfn by another 25%.

At October 31, 2001, the Fund’s investment, assigned
a fair value of $7.5 million, consisted of 5,802,259
shares of Series C Preferred Stock at a valuation of
$1.2926 per share.

On January 31, 2002, the Valuation Committee
marked down the remaining value of the Fund’s
investment in the Series C Preferred Stock by 33%.
The Fund’s investment then consisted of 5,802,259
shares of Series C Preferred Stock at a valuation of
$0.8617 per share.

On July 31, 2002, the Valuation Committee marked
down the remaining value of the Fund’s investment in
the Series C Preferred Stock by 40%.

At October 31, 2002, the Fund’s investment in
FOLIOfn consisted of 5,802,259 shares of Series C
Preferred Stock with a cost of $15,000,000. The
investment has been assigned a fair value of approxi-

mately $3,000,000, or $0.517 per share. Mr. Grillos,
the Chief Executive Officer of the Fund, serves as a
director of FOLIOfn.

in foUSA.COM, INC.

On June 2, 2000, the Fund invested $10 million in
infoUSA.com, Inc. ("infoUSA.com"), consisting of
2,145,922 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred
Stock ("Series B Preferred Stock") at $4.66 per share.

On September 28, 2001, the Valuation Committee
marked down the valuation of the Fund’s $10 million
investment in the Series B Preferred Stock issue of
infoUSA.com by 32.5%.

At October 31, 2001, the Fund’s investment, assigned
a fair value of $6.7 million, consisted of 2,145,922
shares of Series B Preferred Stock at a valuation of
$3.1455 per share.

On December 29, 2001 the Fund agreed to the acqui-
sition of the assets of infoUSA.com. by infoUSA, Inc.,
the parent company of infoUSA.com. In return, the
Fund received proceeds of $6.7 million made up of
$4.9 million in cash and $1.8 million in the form of a
promissory note from infoUSA, Inc. The Fund shall
receive interest on the unpaid principal balance of the
Note at the rate of 6% per annum, paid quarterly. The
Note is due and payable on September 29, 2003. The
entire transaction resulted in a realized loss of $3.3
million for the Fund.

ISHONI NETWORKS, INC.

Ishoni Networks, Inc. ("Ishoni"), Santa Clara,
California, is a developer of highly integrated
Broadband Engines that allow customer premises
equipment (CPE) manufacturers and service providers
to offer integrated voice, data and security services
over a single broadband connection to residential and
business customers.

On November 6, 2000 the Fund invested $10 million
in Ishoni, consisting of 2,003,607 shares of Series C
Convertible Preferred Stock (Series C Preferred
Stock") at $4.991 per share.

On July 25, 2001, the Valuation Committee marked
down the valuation of the Fund’s $10 million invest-
ment in the Series C Preferred Stock issue of Ishoni
by 25%.
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Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series A Preferred
Stock") at $.9781 per share.

On October 26, 2001, the Valuation Committee
marked down the valuation of the Fund’s $7 million
investment in the Series A Preferred Stock issue of
Endymion by 25%.

At October 31, 2001, the Fund’s investment, assigned
a fair value of $5.3 million consisted of 7,156,760
shares of Series A Preferred Stock at a valuation of
$0.7336 per share.

On April 19, 2002, the Valuation Committee marked
down the remaining value of the Fund’s investment in
the Series A Preferred Stock by 43%. The Fund’s
investment then consisted of 7,156,760 shares of Series
A Preferred Stock at a valuation of $0.4192 per share.

On July 31, 2002, the Valuation Committee marked
down the remaining value of the Fund’s investment
in the Series A Preferred Stock issue of Endymion
by 33%.

At October 31, 2002, the Fund’s investment in
Endymion consisted of 7,156,760 shares of Series
A Preferred Stock with a cost of approximately
$7,000,000. The investment has been assigned a fair
value of $2 million, or $0.2795 per share.

EXP SYSTEMS, INC.

EXP Systems, Inc. ("EXP"), Menlo Park, California, is
a provider of enterprise software that helps companies
improve sales and service through their Web sites by
enabling buyers to engage with real people in real time
who can assist them in answering questions and mak-
ing purchase decisions.

On June 6, 2000, the Fund invested $10 million in
EXP, consisting of 1,748,252 shares of Series C
Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series C Preferred
Stock") at $5.72 per share.

On April 20, 2001, the Valuation Committee marked
down the valuation of the Fund’s $10 million invest-
ment in the Series C Preferred Stock issue of EXP by
25%. The Fund’s investment then consisted of
1,748,252 shares of Series C Preferred Stock at a val-
uation of $4.29 per share.

On October 23, 2001, the Valuation Committee
marked down the valuation of the Fund’s $10 million
investment in the Series C Preferred Stock issue of
EXP by 50%.

At October 31, 2001, the Fund’s investment, assigned
a fair value of $3.8 million, consisted of 1,748,252
shares of Series C Preferred Stock at a valuation of
$2.1450 per share.

On January 31, 2002, the Valuation Committee
marked down the remaining value of the Fund’s
investment in the Series C Preferred Stock by 33%.
The Fund’s investment then consisted of 1,748,252
shares of Series C Preferred Stock at a valuation of
$1.43 per share.

On May 17, 2002, the Valuation Committee marked
down the remaining valuation of the Fund’s invest-
ment in the Series C Preferred Stock by 26%. The
Valuation Committee’s decision was based on the
announcement of an impending disbursement of cap-
ital by EXP. The Fund’s investment then consisted of
1,748,252 shares of Series C Preferred Stock at a val-
uation of $1.0582 per share, believed to be what the
Fund would receive at the completion of the dis-
bursement of capital.

On June 19, 2002 the Fund agreed to certain assets of
EXP being disbursed pro rata to the shareholders of
each of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock,
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, and Series C
Preferred Stock. In return, the Fund received pro-
ceeds of approximately $1,500,000 in cash. The entire
transaction resulted in a realized loss of $6.6 million
for the Fund. The Fund’s investment then consisted of
330,750 shares of Series C Preferred Stock at a valua-
tion of $1.0582 per share.

On October 3, 2002, the Valuation Committee
marked down the remaining valuation of the Fund’s
investment in the Series C Preferred Stock by 36%.
The Valuation Committee’s decision was based on
new information surrounding future disbursements of
capital by EXP. The Fund’s investment then consisted
of 330,750 shares of Series C Preferred Stock at a val-
uation of $0.6803 per share, then believed to be what
the Fund would receive at the completion of the dis-
bursement of capital.

On October 3, 2002 the Fund agreed to certain assets
of EXP being disbursed pro rata to the shareholders of
each of the Series A Convertible Preferred stock,
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, and Series C
Preferred Stock. In return, the Fund received pro-
ceeds of approximately $200,000 in cash. The entire
transaction resulted in a realized loss of $1.5 million
for the Fund.
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At October 31, 2001, the Fund’s investments, assigned
a fair value of $11.5 million, then consisted of
3,412,969 shares of Series C Preferred Stock at $2.21
per share and 2,098,636 shares of Series D Preferred
Stock at $1.906 per share, respectively.

On January 31, 2002, the Valuation Committee
marked down the remaining value of the Fund’s
investment in the Series C Preferred Stock by 54%.
The Fund’s investments then consisted of 3,412,969
shares of Series C Preferred Stock at a valuation of
$1.0255 per share and 2,098,636 shares of Series D
Preferred Stock at a valuation of $1.906 per share.

On May 16, 2002, the Valuation Committee marked
down the remaining value of the Fund’s investment in
the Series C Preferred Stock by 100% and marked
down the value of the Fund’s investment in the Series
D Preferred Stock by 35%. The Fund’s investments
then consisted of 3,412,969 shares of Series C
Preferred Stock at a valuation of $0.00 per share and
2,098,636 shares of Series D Preferred Stock at a val-
uation of $1.2389 per share.

On September 13, 2002, the Fund agreed to the
partial return of capital for Pagoo in the amount of
$2.4 million. In conjunction with the return of cap-
ital, the Fund’s Series C Preferred Stock and Series D
Preferred Stock was re-capitalized into Series A-1
Convertible Preferred Shares, along with the entirety
of Pagoo’s Common Stock, Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock, Series B Convertible Preferred
Stock,Series C Preferred Stock and Series D Preferred
Stock. The Series D-1 Convertible Preferred Stock
was re-capitalized into Series A-2 Convertible
Preferred Stock.

At October 31, 2002, the Fund’s investment in Pagoo
consisted of 1,956,026 shares of Series A-1
Convertible Preferred Stock with a cost of approxi-
mately $11.6 million. The investment has been
assigned a fair value of approximately $170,000, or
$0.08688 per share. Nino Marakovic, an Officer of the
Fund, serves as a director of Pagoo.

PHOSISTOR TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

Phosistor Technologies, Inc. ("Phosistor"), Pleasanton,
California, designs and develops integrated semicon-
ductor components and modules for global telecom-
munications and data communications networks.The
company utilizes an advanced process technology that

enables low-cost manufacturing of photonic integrat-
ed circuits containing both active and passive devices
on a single chip, and a packaging technology that
reduces the cost of optical packaging for these pho-
tonic integrated circuits.

On January 24, 2002 the Fund invested $1 million
in Phosistor consisting of 6,666,667 shares of Series
B Convertible Preferred Stock (Series B") at $0.15
per share.

The Series B ranks pari passu, with respect to liquida-
tion preference, to any series of Preferred Stock issued
prior to the Series B and senior to the Common
Stock. In the event of a Qualified IPO, the Series B,
as converted to common stock, will not be transferred
in a public distribution prior to one hundred and
eighty days after the date of the final prospectus used
in such Qualified IPO.

At October 31, 2002, the Fund’s investment in
Phosistor consisted of 6,666,667 shares of Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock with a cost of $1 mil-
lion. The investment has been assigned a fair value of
approximately $1 million, or $0.15 per share.

PROCESSCLAIMS, INC.

ProcessClaims, Inc. ("ProcessClaims"), Manhattan
Beach, California, provides web-based solutions and
value added services that streamline the automobile
insurance claims process for the insurance industry and
its partners.

On June 13, 2001, the Fund invested $2 million in
ProcessClaims, consisting of 6,250,000 shares of Series
C Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series C Preferred
Stock") at $0.32 per share.

On October 31, 2001, the Fund’s investment, assigned
a fair value of $2 million, consisted of 6,250,000 shares
of Series C Preferred Stock at $0.32 per share.

On May 7, 2002, the Fund entered into a $400,000
follow-on investment in ProcessClaims. The Fund’s
investment consisted of 849,257 shares of Series D
Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series D Preferred
Stock") at $0.471 per share. The Fund’s investment
also consisted of 873,362 warrants to purchase Series
E Convertible Preferred Stock at $0.000023 per share.
The warrants expire on December 31, 2005.

The Series D Preferred Stock ranks pari passu, with
respect to liquidation preference, to the Series C
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On October 31, 2001, the Fund’s investment, assigned
a fair value of $7.5 million, consisted of 2,003,607
shares of Series C Preferred Stock at a valuation of
$3.7433 per share.

On January 31, 2002, the Valuation Committee
marked down the remaining value of the Fund’s
investment in the Series C Preferred Stock by 33%.
The Fund’s investment then consisted of 2,003,607
shares of Series C Preferred Stock at a valuation of
$2.4955 per share.

On July 31, 2002, the Valuation Committee marked
down the remaining value of the Fund’s investment in
the Series C Preferred Stock by 50%.

At October 31, 2002, the Fund’s investment in Ishoni
consisted of 2,003,607 shares of Series C Preferred
Stock with a cost of $10 million. The investment has
been assigned a fair value of $2.5 million, or $1.2477
per share.

LUMETA CORPORATION

Lumeta Corporation ("Lumeta"), Somerset, New
Jersey, is a developer of network management, securi-
ty, and auditing solutions. The company provides busi-
nesses with a comprehensive analysis of their network
security that reveals the vulnerabilities and inefficien-
cies of their corporate intranets.

On October 30, 2000, the Fund invested $250,000
investment in Lumeta, consisting of 384,615 shares of
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series A
Preferred Stock") at $0.65 per share.

On October 31, 2001, the Fund’s investment, assigned
a fair value of $250,000 consisted of 384,615 shares of
Series A Preferred Stock at $0.65 per share.

On February 13, 2002 the Fund entered into a fol-
low-on investment of approximately $30,000 in
Lumeta. The Fund’s investment consisted of a
Convertible Promissory Note (the "Note") with a
face value of $30,000 and earning interest at a rate of
12% per annum.The Note was due and payable on
May 31, 2002.

On June 10, 2002, the Fund entered into a follow-on
investment of $126,000 in Lumeta, consisting of
180,266 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred
Stock ("Series B Preferred Stock") at $0.70 per share.
In conjunction with the Series B Preferred Stock
financing, the Fund converted its $30,000 note into

86,580 shares of Series B Preferred Stock at $0.35
per share.

The Series B Preferred Stock ranks senior, with
respect to liquidation preference, to any series of
Preferred Stock issued prior to the Series B Preferred
Stock and senior to the Common Stock. In the
event of a Qualified Initial Public Offering
("Qualified IPO"), the Series B Preferred Stock, as
converted to common stock, will not be transferred
in a public distribution prior to one hundred and
eighty days after the date of the final prospectus used
in such Qualified IPO.

Due to the investment in the Series B Preferred Stock
at a higher price per share than the Series A Preferred
Stock, the value of the Series A Preferred Stock was
subsequently marked up in accordance with the valu-
ation policies established by management and
approved by the Board of Directors.

At October 31,2002, the Fund’s investment in Lumeta
consisted of 384,615 shares of Series A Preferred Stock
and 266,846 shares of Series B Preferred Stock with a
cost of approximately $406,000. The investment has
been assigned a fair value of approximately $456,000,
or $0.70 per share for each the Series A and B
Preferred Stock.

PAGOO, INC.

Pagoo, Inc. ("Pagoo"), Lafayette, California, is a devel-
oper of Internet voice technologies offering Internet
services direct to the consumer.

On July 11, 2000, the Fund invested $10 million
Pagoo consisting of 3,412,969 shares of Series C
Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series C Preferred
Stock") at $2.93 per share.

On February 26, 2001, the Fund entered into a fol-
low-on investment of  $4 million in the Series D
Convertible Preferred Stock (Series D Preferred
Stock) financing of Pagoo. The Fund’s investment
consisted of 2,098,636 shares of Series D Preferred
Stock at $1.906 per share.

Due to the investment in Series D Preferred Stock at a
lower price per share than the Series C Preferred
Stock, the value of the Series C Preferred Stock was
subsequently marked down. The markdown considers
the anti-dilutive covenants of the Series C Preferred
Stock as contained in Pagoo’s Articles of Incorporation.
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$6 million investment in the Series B Preferred Stock
issue of ShopEaze by 50%.

At October 31, 2001, the Fund’s investment, assigned
a fair value of $2.3 million, consisted of 2,097,902
shares of Series B Preferred Stock at a valuation of
$1.0725 per share.

On January 31, 2002, the Valuation Committee
marked down the remaining value of the Fund’s
investment in the Series B Preferred Stock by approx-
imately 56%. The Fund’s investment then consisted of
2,097,902 shares of Series B Preferred Stock at a val-
uation of $0.4767 per share.

On April 16, 2002, the Valuation Committee marked
down the remaining value of the Fund’s investment in
the Series B Preferred Stock by the remaining 16%.
The Fund’s investment then consisted of 2,097,902
shares of Series B Preferred Stock at a valuation of
$0.00 per share.

At October 31, 2002, the Fund’s investment in
ShopEaze consisted of 2,097,902 shares of Series B
Preferred Stock with a cost of $6 million. The invest-
ment has been assigned a fair value of $0.00. ShopEaze
ceased operations during 2002.

SONEXIS, INC. (FORMERLY eYAK, INC.)

Sonexis, Inc. ("Sonexis"), Boston, Massachusetts, is the
developer of a new kind of conferencing solution –
Sonexis ConferenceManager – a modular platform
that supports a breadth of audio and web conferenc-
ing functionality to deliver rich media conferencing.

On June 26, 2000, the Fund invested  $10 million in
Sonexis, consisting of 2,590,674 shares of Series C
Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series C Preferred
Stock") at $3.86 per share.

On October 31, 2001, the Fund’s investment, assigned
a fair value of $10 million consisted of 2,590,674
shares of Series C Preferred Stock at a valuation of
$3.86 per share.

On July 31, 2002, the Valuation Committee marked
down the value of the Fund’s investment in the Series
C Preferred Stock by 30%. The Fund’s investment
then consisted of 2,590,674 shares of Series C
Preferred Stock at a valuation of $2.702 per share.

At October 31,2002, the Fund’s investment in Sonexis
consisted of 2,590,674 shares of Series C Preferred

Stock with a cost of  $10 million. The investment 
has been assigned a fair value of $7 million, or $2.702
per share.

SYGATE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

Sygate Technologies, Inc. ("Sygate"), Fremont,
California, is a provider of enterprise-focused security
policy enforcement solutions. Sygate's solutions pro-
tect corporate networks from intrusion, eliminate the
ability of attacks to gain control of corporate informa-
tion, enforce safe behavior on all endpoints, and
achieve compliance with enterprise security policy.

On October 4, 2002, the Fund invested $4,000,000 in
Sygate, consisting of 9,756,098 shares of Series D
Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series D Preferred
Stock ") at $0.41 per share.

The Series D Preferred Stock ranks senior, with
respect to liquidation preference, to the Series C
Convertible Preferred Stock, Series B/B1 Convertible
Preferred Stock, Series A/A1 Convertible Preferred
Stock and any series of Preferred Stock issued prior to
the Series D Preferred Stock and senior to the
Common Stock. In the event of a Qualified IPO, the
Series D Preferred Stock, as converted to common
stock, will not be transferred in a public distribution
prior to one hundred and eighty days after the date of
the final prospectus used in such Qualified IPO.

At October 31, 2002, the Fund’s investment in Sygate
consisted of 9,756,098 shares of Series D Preferred
Stock with a cost of $4 million. The investment 
has been assigned a fair value of $4 million, or $0.41
per share.

YAGA, INC.

Yaga, Inc. ("Yaga"), San Francisco, California, provides
an advanced hosted application service provider (ASP)
platform that addresses emerging revenue and pay-
ment infrastructure needs of online businesses.Yaga's
sophisticated payment and accounting application
supports micropayments, aggregated billing and stored
value accounts while also managing royalty/affiliate
accounting and split payments.

On November 30, 2000 the Fund invested $200,000
in Yaga, consisting of 200,000 shares of Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series A Preferred
Stock") at $1.00 per share.
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Preferred Stock and the Series E Convertible
Preferred Stock and senior to any series of Preferred
Stock issued prior to the Series C Preferred Stock and
senior to the Common Stock. In the event of a
Qualified IPO, the Series D Preferred Stock, as con-
verted to common stock, will not be transferred in a
public distribution prior to one hundred and eighty
days after the date of the final prospectus used in such
Qualified IPO.

Due to the investment in the Series D Preferred Stock
at a higher price per share than the Series C Preferred
Stock, the value of the Series C Preferred Stock was
subsequently marked up in accordance with the valu-
ation policies established by management and
approved by the Board of Directors.

At October 31, 2002, the Fund’s investment in
ProcessClaims, valued at $3.3 million with a cost of
$2.4 million, consisted of 6,250,000 shares of Series C
Preferred Stock at $0.471 per share, 849,257 shares of
Series D Preferred Stock at $0.471 per share, and
873,362 warrants to purchase 873,362 shares of Series
E Convertible Preferred Stock. Nino Marakovic, an
Officer of the Fund, serves as a director of
ProcessClaims.

SAFESTONE TECHNOLOGIES PLC

SafeStone Technologies PLC ("SafeStone"), Old
Amersham, UK, provides organizations with secure
access controls across the extended enterprise, enforc-
ing compliance with security policies and enabling
effective management of the corporate IT and e-busi-
ness infrastructure.

On December 22, 2000, the Fund invested $3.5 mil-
lion in SafeStone, consisting of 650,401 shares of
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series A
Preferred Stock") at $5.38 per share. The Fund’s
investment also consists of a warrant for the right to
subscribe at par for Series A preference shares of
£0.01 each in accordance with the terms of the
Warrant Agreement.

On October 26, 2001, the Valuation Committee
marked down the valuation of the Fund’s $3.5 million
investment in the Series A Preferred Stock issue of
SafeStone by 25%.

On October 31, 2001, the Fund’s investment,
assigned a fair value of $2.6 million, consisted of

650,401 shares of Series A Preferred Stock at a valu-
ation of $4.0350 per share.

On July 3,2002,Fund entered into a $500,000 follow-
on investment in SafeStone. The Fund’s investment
consisted of 391,923 shares of Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock ("Series B Preferred Stock") at
$1.2758 per share. In conjunction with the Series B
Preferred Stock financing, the Fund exercised its
Series A Share Anti-Dilution Warrant, purchasing
1,064,054 shares of Series A Preferred Stock at
$0.01526 per share.

Due to the investment in the Series B Preferred Stock
at a lower price per share than the Series A Preferred
Stock, the value of the Series A Preferred Stock was
subsequently marked down in accordance with the
valuation policies as set forth in the Fund’s
Registration Statement.

At October 31, 2002, the Fund’s investment in
SafeStone, with a cost basis of $4 million, consisted of
1,714,455 shares of Series A Preferred Stock and
391,923 shares of Series B Preferred Stock. The
investment has been assigned a fair value of $2.7 mil-
lion, or $1.2758 per share for each the Series A and B
Preferred Stock.

SHOPEAZE SYSTEMS, INC.

ShopEaze Systems, Inc. ("ShopEaze"), Sunnyvale,
California, partners with established retailers to help
them build online businesses to complement their
existing brick-and-mortar businesses. ShopEaze’s suite
of comprehensive services helps its partners’ customers
to enjoy the experience and convenience of shopping
online with their local, trusted retailers.

On May 25, 2000, the Fund entered into a $6 million
investment in ShopEaze consisting of 2,097,902 shares
of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series B
Preferred Stock") at $2.86 per share.

On July 25, 2001, the Valuation Committee marked
down the valuation of the Fund’s $6 million invest-
ment in the Series B Preferred Stock issue of
ShopEaze by 25%. The Fund’s investment then con-
sisted of 2,097,902 shares of Series B Preferred Stock
at a valuation of $2.145 per share.

On October 23, 2001, the Valuation Committee
marked down the remaining value of the Fund’s
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On December 26, 2002, the Fund entered into an
investment of $5,000,000 in the form of a Credit
Facility with Synhrgy HR Technologies, Inc.
("Synhrgy") maturing on January 3, 2006. The note
earns a fixed rate of interest at 12% per annum on the
outstanding balance of the note. The Fund also
received warrants to purchase Series B-1 Preferred
Stock. Synhrgy is based in Houston,Texas.

On December 30, 2002, the Fund entered into an
investment of $5,050,000 in the form of a Convertible
Credit Facility with Integral Development
Corporation ("Integral") maturing on December 31,
2005. The transaction earns a floating rate of interest
at prime plus 5% per annum with a floor at 10% per
annum and a ceiling at 12% per annum on the out-
standing balance, prior to conversion. The Fund also
received warrants to purchase a future round of pre-
ferred stock. Integral is based in Mountain View,
California.

On December 30, 2002, the Fund entered into an
investment of $5,050,000 in the form of a Credit
Facility with Arcot Systems, Inc. ("Arcot") maturing
on December 31, 2005. The note earns a floating rate
of interest at prime plus 5% per annum with a floor at
10% per annum and a ceiling at 12% per annum on
the outstanding balance of the note. The Fund also
received warrants to purchase a future round of pre-
ferred stock.Arcot is based in Santa Clara, California.

On December 31, 2002, the Fund increased its invest-
ment of Series E Preferred Stock of CBCA, Inc. by
$1,000,000.

On December 19, 2002,Vice Chancellor Lamb grant-
ed Millenco's motion for summary judgment on its
claim that the directors breached their duty of disclo-
sure under Delaware law by omitting material facts
concerning the business relationship among three of
the directors (directors Grillos, Gerhard and Hughes)
at eVineyard, Inc. (a privately held corporation) from
the 2001 and 2002 proxy statements. Director Grillos,
an "interested" director of the Fund by reason of being
its CEO and managing member of the Former Sub-
Advisor, was Chairman of the Board and Chairman of
the Compensation Committee of eVineyard at the
same time that directors Gerhard and Hughes, "non-
interested" directors of the Fund, were officers of
eVineyard. Vice Chancellor Lamb, finding that the
omissions rendered the proxy statements false and mis-

leading, ordered the Fund to hold new elections for
the seats held by directors Grillos and Gerhard and
former director Freudenthal, to be conducted either in
conjunction with the Fund's upcoming annual meet-
ing in 2003 (at which two other director seats are up
for election) if that meeting is held within 60 days of
the date of the Vice Chancellor's order, or separately
on or before February 15, 2003. The Vice Chancellor
noted without comment Millenco's statement that the
remaining claims in Millenco's latest amended com-
plaint were no longer at issue in the case.

On December 22, 2002, the Fund filed a motion for
re-argument of the Vice Chancellor’s order with
respect to the date by which the Fund must hold an
annual or special meeting for the election to fill the
three directors’ seats. On January 8, 2003, the Vice
Chancellor issued an order granting the Fund’s
motion to re-argue and extending the last date for that
election to February 28, 2003.

On January 6, 2003, the former Board of Directors of
the Fund held a meeting to discuss the upcoming
annual meeting of stockholders and the proxy solicita-
tion process. The former Board of Directors also dis-
cussed at great length the qualifications of various
Director Candidates to be considered for appointment
to the Board of Directors. On January 6, 2003, the
former Board of Directors determined to increase the
size of the Board from five members to seven mem-
bers so that the Fund would have greater expertise and
experience in managing the Fund’s affairs. On January
7, 2003, the former Board of Directors nominated
Messrs. Grillos, Jordan, Tobkin, Hootnick, Locke and
Hughes to serve as Directors of the Fund and deter-
mined that the names of those persons be submitted to
stockholders for approval as Directors of the Fund.

On January 16, 2003, the former Board of Directors,
including the Directors who are not interested persons
of the Fund, appointed Messrs. Hootnick, Jordan,
Locke and Tobkin to fill vacancies on the Board of
Directors that would be created by the resignations of
Messrs. Gerhard, Hughes and Lufkin and the existing
vacancy of Peter S. Freudenthal. On January 16,
2003, the former Board of Directors nominated Mr.
Grillos to serve as a Class I director for the remainder
of the three-year term to which he was elected in
2001, Mr. Hootnick to serve as a Class II director for
the remainder of the three-year term to which Mr.
Gerhard was elected in 2002, and Mr. Jordan to serve
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On June 8, 2001 the Fund entered into a $2 million
investment in Yaga, consisting of 1,000,000 shares of
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series B
Preferred Stock") at $2.00 per share. The Fund also
received 100,000 warrants to purchase 100,000 shares
of Series B Preferred Stock. The warrants expire on
June 8, 2004.

Due to the investment in Series B Preferred Stock
at a higher price per share than the Series A
Preferred Stock, the value of the Series A Preferred
Stock was subsequently marked up in accordance
with the valuation policies as set forth in the Fund’s
Registration Statement.

On July 31, 2001, the Fund entered into a $100,000
investment of Series A Preferred Stock of Yaga.

On October 31, 2001, the Fund’s investments,
assigned a fair value of $2.6 million, consisted of
300,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock at $2.00
per share and 1,000,000 shares of Series B Preferred
Stock at $2.00 per share.

On July 31, 2002, the Valuation Committee marked
down the value of the Fund’s investments in the
Series A Preferred Stock and Series B Preferred
Stock by 50%.

At October 31, 2002, the Fund’s investment in Yaga,
at a total cost of $ 2.3 million, consisted of 300,000
shares of Series A Preferred Stock, 1,000,000 shares of
Series B Preferred and 100,000 warrants to purchase
100,000 shares of Series B Preferred Shares.The Fund
has assigned a fair value of $1.3 million on its invest-
ments in Yaga.

Liqu id i ty  and Capi ta l  Resources

At October 31, 2002, the Fund had $50.1 million of
its net assets (the value of total assets less total liabili-
ties) of $195.4 million invested in portfolio securities
of 20 companies, $4.1 million in eight subordinated
notes which are also related to portfolio investments,
$62.8 million of its net assets invested in temporary
investments consisting of Certificates of Deposit, com-
mercial paper, corporate bonds and U.S. government
and agency securities, and $78.9 million in money
market funds and cash and cash equivalents.The Fund
considers all money market and all highly liquid tem-
porary cash investments purchased with an original
maturity of three months or less to be cash equiva-

lents. Current balance sheet resources are believed to
be sufficient to finance any future commitments.

The Fund reserves the right to retain any net long-
term capital gains in excess of net short-term capital
losses for reinvestment or to pay contingencies and
expenses. Such retained amounts, if any,will be taxable
to the Fund as long-term capital gains, and sharehold-
ers will be able to claim their proportionate share of
the federal income taxes paid by the Fund on such
gains as a credit against their own federal income-tax
liabilities. Shareholders will also be entitled to increase
the adjusted tax basis of their Fund shares by the dif-
ference between their undistributed capital gains and
their tax credit

Subsequent  Events

Effective November 1,2002,Management has engaged
US Bancorp Fund Services LLC to handle all func-
tions of administration and accounting work neces-
sary for the operations of the Fund and has engaged
US Bank National Association to handle all func-
tions of custodial work necessary for the operations
of the Fund.

On November 1, 2002, the Fund initiated a stock
repurchase plan of up to $20 million in stock
repurchases. As of January 22, 2003, the Fund had
repurchased 203,200 shares under this plan.

On November 20, 2002, DataPlay filed for bankrupt-
cy under Chapter 11 of the US Code.

On December 2, 2002 the Fund announced that it
would begin doing business under the name MVC
Capital, that it had hired Michael D. Stewart as the
Acting Chief Financial Officer, and that the Fund’s
principal executive offices are now located at 3000
Sand Hill Road, Building 1, Suite 155, Menlo Park,
CA  94025.

On December 18, 2002, the Fund increased its
investment of Series E Preferred Stock of CBCA,
Inc. by $1,000,000.

On December 20, 2002, the Fund entered into an
investment of $3,000,000 in the form of a Convertible
Promissory Note with BS Management, Inc.maturing
on March 17, 2003.The transaction earns a fixed rate
of interest at 12% per annum on the outstanding bal-
ance, prior to conversion.of the loan.BS Management
is based in the Isle of Man.
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as a Class I director for the remainder of the three-year
term to which Mr. Freudenthal was elected in 2001.
On January 16, 2003, the former Board of Directors
also nominated Mr. Locke to serve for the remainder
of the three-year term of the newly-created Class II
directorship, the term of which expires at the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be held in 2005 and Mr.
Tobkin to serve as Class III director for a three-year
term to expire at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders
to be held in 2006.

On January 16, 2003, the current Board of Directors
held a Meeting. At that Meeting the Board of
Directors ratified and approved an increase in the size
of the Fund’s Board of Directors from five members to
seven members. The Board of Directors ratified and
accepted their appointment to fill vacancies on the
Board of Directors that had been created by the resig-
nations of Messrs. Gerhard, Hughes and Lufkin and
the existing vacancy of Mr. Freudenthal.

At the same meeting, the current Board of Directors
also ratified the nomination of Mr. Grillos to serve as
a Class I director for the remainder of the three-year
term to which he was elected in 2001, ratified the
nomination of Mr. Hootnick to serve as a Class II
director for the remainder of the three-year term to
which Mr. Gerhard was elected in 2002, and ratified
the nomination of Mr. Jordan to serve as a Class I
director for the remainder of the three-year term to
which Mr. Freudenthal was elected in 2001. At the
same meeting, the Board of Directors also ratified the
nomination of Mr. Locke to serve for the remainder
of the three-year term of the newly-created Class II
directorship, the term of which expires at the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be held in 2005 and rati-
fied the nominations of Messrs.Hoar, Sims and Tobkin
to serve as Class III directors for a three-year term to
expire at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be
held in 2006.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITA-
TIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

We invest in small companies, and our investments are
considered speculative in nature. Our investments
often include securities that are subject to legal or
contractual restrictions on resale that adversely affect
the liquidity and marketability of such securities.As a
result, we are subject to risk of loss which may prevent
our stockholders from achieving price appreciation
and dividend distributions.
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ITEM 7  &  ITEM 7A

( I tem 7 cont inued)  

The portion of our portfolio consisting of invest-
ments in private companies is also subject to valua-
tion risk. We value our privately held investments
based on a determination of their fair value made
in good faith by our board of directors on a quar-
terly basis and otherwise required in accordance
with our established guidelines. In the absence of a
readily ascertainable market value, the estimated
values of our investments may differ significantly
from the values that would exist if a ready market
for these securities existed. Any changes in valua-
tion are recorded in our statements of operations as
"Net unrealized gain (loss) on investments."

Investments in short term securities and cash and
cash equivalents comprise approximately 72.5% of
the Fund’s net assets at October 31, 2002, and are
subject to financial market risk, including changes
in interest rates. The Fund also intends to invest its
capital in debt securities by providing debt financ-
ing to late stage venture capital backed Information
Technology companies. These loans will provide
interest income to the Fund at either fixed or vari-
able rates of interest, depending on the terms of the
particular instrument. Changes in market interest
rates may impact the Fund’s yield on those loans
priced at a fixed rate of interest.
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Shareholders’ Equity:

Common Stock, $0.01 par value; 150,000,000 shares  
authorized and 16,500,000 outstanding 165,000 165,000

Additional paid in capital 311,485,000 311,485,000

Retained deficit ( 116,263,523) (57,178,444)

Total shareholders’ equity 195,386,477 254,471,556

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 196,511,000 $ 255,049,783

Net asset value per share $ 11.84 $ 15.42

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Oct . 31, 2002 Oct . 31, 2001

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

BALANCE SHEETS

meVC Draper  Fisher  Jurvetson Fund I , Inc . , Ba lance Sheets

ASSETS

Investments in preferred stocks, at fair value (cost 
$127,536,066, and $148,886,310, respectively), (Note 2) $ 50,116,026 $ 90,926,328

Investments in short-term securities, at market value (cost 
$62,800,088 and $151,320,526, respectively), (Note 2) 62,797,687 151,373,377

Cash and cash equivalents (cost $78,873,485 and 
$12,353,422, respectively), (Note 2) 78,873,485 12,353,422

Subordinated notes (cost $6,327,474 and $0, respectively) 4,077,474 –

Interest receivable 216,024 396,656

Prepaid expenses 50,672 –

Receivable for investments sold 379,632 –

Total assets $ 196,511,000 $ 255,049,783

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Liabilities (Note 3):

Payable for investments purchased – –

Management fee payable – 578,227

Custody/Accounting/Transfer Agency 7,500 –

Administration 11,250 –

Audit fees 149,000 –

Legal fees 387,459 –

Director’s fees 14,400 –

Employee compensation & benefits 57,279 –

Consulting and public relation fees 344,608 –

Other accrued expenses 153,027 –

Total liabilities $ 1,124,523 $ 578,227

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

ITEM 8

Oct . 31, 2002 Oct . 31, 2001
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net decrease in net assets resulting 
from operations $ (58,356,389) $ (51,330,533) $ (203,261)   
Adjustments to reconcile net 
cash provided by operations:
Realized loss (gain) 33,469,122 (5,123) 789   
Net unrealized depreciation 21,765,310 52,994,121 4,913,010
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts payable 546,296 (89,912) 668,139 
Prepaid expenses (50,672) – – 
Interest receivable 180,632 243,964 (640,620)
Investments sold receivable (379,632) – –
Purchase of preferred stock (22,076,694) (36,331,834) (112,554,476)
Purchase of short-term investments (157,541,221) (218,380,747) (102,055,901)
Purchase of cash equivalents (1,119,326,199) (955,884,612) (2,508,601,655)
Purchase of subordinated notes (4,500,000) – –
Sales of preferred stocks 9,955,664 –  –
Sales/maturities of short-term investments 35,097,303 185,569,861 14,983,808
Sales/maturities of cash equivalents 1,328,465,233 925,452,721 2,507,600,333
Net cash provided by (used for)
operating activities 67,248,753 (97,762,094) (195,889,834)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Gross proceeds from initial public offering – – 330,000,000
Sales load – – (16,500,000)
Advisory fee, Prudential Securities Inc. – – (1,500,000)
Offering costs – – (350,000)
Redemption of seed money – – (5,000)
Distributions (728,690) (5,644,650) –
Net cash (used for) provided by
financing activities (728,690) (5,644,650)     311,645,000
Net change in cash and cash 
equivalents for the period 66,520,063 (103,406,744) 115,755,166
Cash and cash equivalents,
beginning of period 12,353,422 115,760,166 5,000
Cash and cash equivalents,
end of the period $ 78,873,485 $ 12,353,422 $115,760,166

* Commencement of operations.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

For  the For  the For  the per iod
year  ended year  ended Mar. 31, 2000

Oct . 31, 2002 Oct . 31, 2001 to Oct . 31, 2000

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

meVC Draper  Fisher  Jurvetson Fund I , Inc . , Sta tement  o f  Cash F lows

*

Investment Income:
Interest income $ 3,730,148 $ 9,046,526 $    9,325,822    
Dividend income 9,745 – –
Total investment income 3,739,893 9,046,526 9,325,822

Operating Expenses:
Management fees (Note 3) 3,592,757 7,388,061 4,615,284
Custody/Accounting/Transfer Agency 45,780 – –
Administration 67,500 – –
Audit fees 155,000 – –
Legal fees 998,436 – –
Director’s fees 307,200 – –
Employee compensation & benefits 696,399 – –
Consulting and public relation fees 546,952 – –
Insurance 134,421 – –
Facilities 166,483 – –
Printing and postage 97,512 – –
Registration fees 53,410 – –
Total operating expenses 6,861,850 7,388,061 4,615,284
Net investment (loss) income (3,121,957) 1,658,465 4,710,538

Net Realized and Unrealized (Loss)
Gain on Investment Transactions:
Net realized (loss) gain on 
investment transactions (33,469,122) 5,123 (789)
Net realized depreciation on 
investment transactions (21,765,310) (52,994,121) (4,913,010)
Net realized and unrealized loss
on investment transactions (55,234,432) (52,988,998) (4,913,799)

Net decrease in net assets resulting
from operations $(58,356,389) $(51,330,533) $ (203,261)
Net decrease in net assets resulting
from operations per share $ (3.54) $ (3.12) $ (0.01)
Dividends declared per share $ 0.04 $ 0.34 $ –

* Commencement of operations.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

For  the For  the For  the per iod
year  ended year  ended Mar. 31, 2000

Oct . 31, 2002 Oct . 31, 2001 to Oct . 31, 2000

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

meVC Draper  Fisher  Jurvetson Fund I , Inc . , Sta tement  o f  Opera t ions

*
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net asset value, beginning of period $ 15.42 $ 18.88 $          18.89  (a)
Income (loss) from investment operations:
Net investment (loss) income (0.19) 0.10 0.29   
Net realized and unrealized loss on investments (3.35) (3.22) (0.30)
Total from investment operations (3.54) (3.12) (0.01)
Less distributions from and in excess of:
Net investment income (0.04) (0.34) –   
Total distributions (0.04) (0.34) –
Net asset value, end of period $ 11.84 $ 15.42 $ 18.88
Market value, end of period $ 7.90 $ 9.25 $ 11.50

Total Return - at NAV (b) (22.88)% (15.99)% (0.05)%
Total Return - at Market (b) (14.22)% (17.26)% (42.50)%  (c)

Ratios and Supplemental Data:
Net assets, end of period (in thousands) 195,386 254,472 311,447
Ratios to average net assets:
Expenses (Note 3) 3.02% 2.50% 2.50%  (d)
Net investment income (1.37)% 0.56% 1.49%

* Commencement of operations.

(a) Initial public offering, net of initial sales load, underwriting and offering cost of $1.11 
per share.

(b) Total return is historical and assumes changes in share price, reinvestments of all dividends
and distributions, and no sales charge.Total return for periods of less than one year is 
not annualized.

(c) For the period June 26, 2000 (commencement of trading on the NYSE) to October 31,
2000.

(d) Annualized.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

For  the For  the For  the per iod
year  ended year  ended Mar. 31, 2000

Oct . 31, 2002 Oct . 31, 2001 to Oct . 31, 2000

SELECTED PER SHARE DATA AND RATIOS

meVC Draper  Fisher  Jurvetson Fund I , Inc . , Se lected Per  Share Da ta  and Ra t ios

*

Balance at 
March 31, 2000* $ 3 $ 4,997 $ – $ 5,000

Issuance of 16,500,000 
shares through initial 
public offering 
(net of offering costs) 165,000 311,485,000 – 311,650,000

Redemption of seed shares (3) (4,997) – (5,000)

Net decrease in net assets 
from operations – – (203,261) (203,261)

Balance at 
October 31, 2000 $ 165,000 $311,485,000 $ (203,261) $311,446,739

Distributions from 
net investment income – – (5,644,650) (5,644,650)

Net decrease in net assets 
from operations – – (51,330,533) (51,330,533)

Balance at 
October 31, 2001 $ 165,000 $311,485,000 $(57,178,444) $254,471,556

Distributions from 
net investment income – – (728,690) (728,690)

Net decrease in net assets 
from operations – – (58,356,389) (58,356,389)

Balance at 
October 31, 2002 $ 165,000 $311,485,000 $(116,263,523) $195,386,477

* Commencement of operations.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Tota l
Common Addi t iona l  Reta ined Shareholders ’

Stock Paid- in-Capi ta l Def ic i t Equi ty

STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

meVC Draper  Fisher  Jurvetson Fund I , Inc . , Sta tement  o f  Shareholders ’  Equi ty



SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

meVC Draper  Fisher  Jurvetson Fund I , Inc . Schedule  o f  Investments
(October  31, 2002)  

Prefer red Stocks: 25.65% 
(a , b ,d ,g )  (Note  6 ,7,8)

Actelis Networks, Inc.,
Series C 1,506,025 May 2001 $ 5,000,003 $ 2,500,002

*AuctionWatch.com, Inc.,
Common Stock (c) 10,476 June 2000 5,500,000 –

*AuctionWatch.com, Inc.,
Series A 6,443,188 Jan. 2002 1,134,001 1,134,001

*BlueStar Solutions, Inc.:

Common Stock 49,474 May 2000 3,999,999 –
Series C Preferred 74,211 May 2000 5,999,999 1,499,990
Series C Warrants,
expire 05/26/2003 136,054 May 2000 – –

*BlueStar Solutions, Inc.,
Series D 4,545,455 Feb. 2002 3,000,000 3,000,000

*CBCA, Inc., Series E 4,774,636 Apr. 2002 9,999,998 9,999,998

Cidera, Inc., Series D 857,192 Aug. 2000 7,500,001 500,000

DataPlay, Inc., Series D 2,500,000 June 2001 7,500,000 –

*Endymion Systems, Inc.,
Series A 7,156,760 June 2000 7,000,000 2,000,314

*EXP Systems, Inc., Series C 36,750 June 2000 210,210 25,001

*Foliofn, Inc., Series C 5,802,259 June 2000 15,000,000 2,999,768

*Ishoni Networks, Inc.,
Series C 2,003,607 Nov. 2000 10,000,003 2,499,900

Lumeta Corporation,
Series A 384,615 Oct. 2000 250,000 269,231

Lumeta Corporation,
Series B 266,846 June 2002 156,489 186,792

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Date of
Shares/ In i t ia l

Descr ip t ion Pr inc ipa l Investment Cost Fa i r  Va lue

*Pagoo, Inc., Series A-1 1,956,026 July 2000 $ 11,569,939 $ 169,940

*Phosistor Technologies, Inc.,
Series B 6,666,667 Jan. 2002 1,000,000 1,000,000

*ProcessClaims, Inc.,
Series C 6,250,000 June  2001 2,000,000 2,943,750

*ProcessClaims, Inc.,
Series D 849,257 May  2002 400,000 400,000

*Process Claims, Inc.

Series E warrants,
expire 12/31/2005 873,362 May 2002 20 20

*SafeStone Technologies PLC,
Series A 1,714,455 Dec. 2000 3,515,403 2,187,302

*SafeStone Technologies PLC,
Series B 391,923 July 2002 500,000 500,015

*ShopEaze Systems, Inc.,
Series B (f) 2,097,902 May 2000 6,000,000 –

*Sonexis, Inc.
Series C 2,590,674 June 2000 10,000,000 7,000,001

Sygate Technologies, Inc.
Series D 9,756,098 Oct. 2002 4,000,000 4,000,000

*Yaga, Inc., Series A 300,000 Nov. 2000 300,000 300,000

*Yaga, Inc.:

Series B 1,000,000 June 2001 2,000,000 1,000,000
Series B Warrants,
expire 06/08/2004 100,000 June 2001 – –

*0-In Design Automation, Inc.
Series E 2,239,291 Nov. 2001 4,000,001 4,000,001

Total Preferred Stocks 127,536,066 50,116,026

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Subord ina ted Notes:
2.09% (a ,b )

InfoUSA, Inc.
6.000%, 09/29/2003 1,827,475 Dec. 2001 $ 1,827,474 $ 1,827,474

DataPlay, Inc.
6.000%, 05/10/2005 (e) 2,000,000 May 2002 2,000,000 1,000,000

DataPlay, Inc.
6.000%, 06/17/2005 (e) 500,000 June 2002 500,000 250,000

DataPlay, Inc.
6.000%, 09/24/2005 (e) 200,000 Sept. 2002 200,000 100,000

DataPlay, Inc.
6.000%, 08/16/2005 (e) 200,000 Aug. 2002 200,000 100,000

DataPlay, Inc.
6.000%, 08/26/2005 (e) 400,000 Aug. 2002 400,000 200,000

DataPlay, Inc.
6.000%, 09/03/2005 (e) 200,000 Sept. 2002 200,000 100,000

DataPlay, Inc.
6.000%, 06/27/2005 (e) 1,000,000 June 2002 1,000,000 500,000

Total Subordinated Notes 6,327,474 4,077,474

Shor t  Term Secur i t ies :
32.14% (b )

Corporate Bonds: 1.54%

CIT Group Holdings, Inc.
6.375 %, 11/15/2002 3,000,000 Dec. 2001 $ 3,004,333 $ 3,001,932

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

U.S. Government  & 
Agency Secur i t ies : 12.62%

Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Disc. Nts.
1.660%, 01/02/2003 5,500,000 Aug. 2002 $ 5,484,276 $ 5,484,276

Federal National Mortgage
Association Disc. Cons.
1.620%, 11/06/2002 7,000,000 Aug. 2002 6,998,425 6,998,425

Federal National Mortgage
Association Disc. Cons.
1.630%, 11/06/2002  5,300,000 Aug. 2002 5,298,800 5,298,800

Federal National Mortgage
Association Disc. Cons.
1.675%, 12/04/2002  2,900,000 Sept. 2002 2,895,547 2,895,547

Federal National Mortgage
Association Disc. Cons.
1.700%, 11/27/2002  4,000,000 Aug. 2002 3,995,089 3,995,089

Total U.S. Government 
& Agency 24,672,137 24,672,137 

Commerc ia l  Paper : 17.98%

Duetsche Bank

1.530%, 02/05/2003 7,000,000 Oct. 2002 7,000,093 7,000,093

General Electric Cap Corp.
1.770%, 01/15/2003 5,800,000 Oct. 2002 5,778,612 5,778,612

HBOS Treasury Svcs, PLC.
1.770%, 01/17/2003 3,800,000 Oct. 2002 3,785,695 3,785,695

Home Depot
1.770%, 11/06/2002 1,100,000 July 2002 1,009,730 1,009,730

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

51

Date of
Shares/ In i t ia l

Descr ip t ion Pr inc ipa l Investment Cost Va lue



Commerc ia l  Paper  (cont . )

SBC Communications, Inc.
1.760%, 01/22/2003 6,800,000 Oct. 2002 $ 6,772,740 $ 6,772,740

Societe Generale
1.860%, 12/16/2002 5,700,000 June 2002 5,686,748 5,686,748

Wells Fargo Bank
1.640%, 11/15/2002 5,000,000 Aug. 2002 5,000,000 5,000,000

Total Commercial Paper 35,123,618 35,123,618

Total Short Term Securities 62,800,088 62,797,687

Cash and Cash Equiva lents :
40.37% (b )

Commercia l  Paper : 40.35%

ANZ Delaware, Inc.
1.750%, 11/04/2002  6,300,000 Oct. 2002 6,299,081 6,299,081

Abbey National
1.750%, 11/18/2002 1,200,000 Oct. 2002 1,199,008 1,199,008

Abbey National
1.730%, 12/10/2002 5,000,000 Oct. 2002 4,990,629 4,990,629

Air Liquide
1.750%, 11/07/2002 2,000,000 Oct. 2002 1,999,417 1,999,417

CBA Del Fin Inc.
1.720%, 11/19/2002 3,800,000 Oct. 2002 3,796,732 3,796,732

CBA Del Fin Inc.
1.750%, 11/27/2002 1,000,000 Oct. 2002 998,736 998,736

CDC Commercial
1.770%, 11/01/2002 5,350,000 Oct. 2002 5,350,000 5,350,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cash and Cash Equiva lents
(cont . )

CDC Commercial
1.750%, 11/12/2002 1,450,000 Oct. 2002 $ 1,449,225 $ 1,449,225

Citicorp
1.710%, 11/15/2002 5,000,000 Aug. 2002 4,996,675 4,996,675

Danske Corp.
1.750%, 11/07/2002 6,800,000 Oct. 2002 6,798,017 6,798,017

Fortis Funding
1.755%, 11/04/2002 1,500,000 Oct. 2002 1,499,781 1,499,781

Fortis Funding
1.750%, 11/07/2002 1,100,000 Oct. 2002 1,099,679 1,099,679

Fortis Funding
1.750%, 11/13/2002 2,400,000 Oct. 2002 2,398,600 2,398,600

HBOS Treas Svcs.
1.755%, 11/05/2002 3,000,000 Oct. 2002 2,999,415 2,999,415

ING America
1.700%, 11/15/2002 4,200,000 Aug. 2002 4,197,223 4,197,223

ING America
1.740%, 12/05/2002 2,000,000 Sept. 2002 1,996,713 1,996,713

Louis Dreyfus Corp.
1.760%, 11/04/2002 6,000,000 Oct. 2002 5,999,120 5,999,120

Marsh & McLennan Cos.
1.600%, 01/09/2003 2,400,000 Oct. 2002 2,392,640 2,392,640

NBNZ Intl.
1.750%, 11/08/2002 3,901,000 Sept. 2002 3,899,673 3,899,673

NBNZ Intl.
1.760%, 01/03/2003 2,900,000 Oct. 2002 2,891,068 2,891,068

Toyota Mtr Co.
1.720%, 12/12/2002 4,900,000 Oct. 2002 4,890,401 4,890,401

UBS Financial, Inc.
1.750%, 11/22/2002 1,700,000 Oct. 2002 1,698,265 1,698,265

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1. Organiza t ion and Bus iness Purpose

meVC Draper Fisher Jurvetson Fund I, Inc. (the
“Fund”), a closed-end investment company, was
organized as a Delaware corporation on December 2,
1999 and commenced operations on March 31, 2000.
On December 2, 2002 the Fund announced that it
would begin doing business under the name MVC
Capital.The Fund seeks to achieve capital appreciation
principally by making investments in equity and
equity-oriented securities issued by privately-owned
companies in transactions negotiated directly with
such companies (“Portfolio Companies”). The Fund
also intends to invest its capital in debt securities by
providing debt financing to late stage venture capital
backed information technology companies. In a
typical loan, the lender receives interest on the loans,
origination fees, as well as warrants, or other equity
instruments, for the purchase of the borrowers stock.
Generally, the loans will be collateralized by a security
interest in the borrower’s assets. The Fund seeks to
make venture capital investments in information
technology companies. The Fund’s investments in
Portfolio Companies will consist of equity securities
such as common and preferred stock, other equity-
oriented securities such as debt convertible into
common or preferred stock or debt combined with
warrants, options or other rights to acquire common
or preferred stock and debt securities consisting of
senior notes, senior subordinated notes and junior
subordinated notes.

The Fund has elected to be treated as a business
development company under the Investment
Company Act of 1940, as amended (“the Act”). The
shares of the Fund commenced trading on the New
York Stock Exchange (the “Exchange”) under the
symbol MVC on June 26, 2000.

The Fund had entered into an advisory agreement
with meVC Advisers, Inc. (the “former Advisor”), and
meVC Advisers, Inc. had entered into a sub-advisory
agreement with Draper Fisher Jurvetson MeVC
Management Co., LLC (the “former Sub-Advisor”).
On June 19, 2002, the former Advisor resigned
without prior notice to the Fund, effective
immediately, as the Fund’s investment adviser. This
resignation resulted in the automatic termination of
the agreement between the former Advisor and the
former Sub-Advisor to the Fund. As a result, the
Fund’s board internalized the Fund’s operations,
including management of the Fund’s investments.

2. S ign i f icant  Account ing Po l ic ies

The following is a summary of significant accounting
policies followed by the Fund in the preparation of its
financial statements:

The preparation of financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Valuation of Investments – Investments in preferred
stock are carried at fair value with the net change 
in unrealized appreciation or depreciation included
in the determination of net assets (the value of total
assets less total liabilities). Cost is used to approximate
fair value of these investments until significant
developments affecting an investment provide a
basis for valuing such investment at a number other
than cost.

The fair value of investments for which no market
exists and for which the Board of Directors has
determined that the original cost of the investment
is no longer an appropriate valuation will be
determined on the basis of procedures established in
good faith by the Fund’s Board of Directors.
Valuations will be based upon such factors as the
financial and/or operating results of the most recent
fiscal period, the performance of the company
relative to planned budgets/forecasts, the issuer’s
financial condition and the markets in which it 
does business, the prices of any recent transactions 
or offerings regarding such securities or any proxy
securities, any available analysis,media,or other reports
or information regarding the issuer, or the markets or
industry in which it operates, the nature of any
restrictions on disposition of the securities and other
analytical data. In the case of unsuccessful operations,
the valuation may be based upon anticipated
liquidation proceeds.

Because of the inherent uncertainty of the valuation of
portfolio securities which do not have readily
ascertainable market values, the Fund’s determination
of fair value may significantly differ from the fair
market value that would have been used had a ready
market existed for the securities. Such values do not
reflect brokers’ fees or other normal selling costs
which might become payable on disposition of such
investments.
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Cash and Cash Equiva lents
(cont . )

UBS Financial, Inc.
1.750%, 11/01/2002 1,000,000 Oct. 2002 $ 1,000,000 $ 1,000,000

UBS Financial, Inc.
1.750%, 11/13/2002 4,000,000 Sept. 2002 3,997,667 3,997,667

Total Commercial Paper 78,837,765 78,837,765

Money Market Funds: 0.02% (b)

SSgA Money Market Fund 
1.451% 35,720 Oct. 2002   35,720 35,720

Total Cash and 
Cash Equivalents  78,873,485 78,873,485

Total Investments $ 275,537,113 $ 195,864,672

(a) These securities are restricted from public sale without prior registration under the Securities
Act of 1933. The Fund negotiates certain aspects of the method and timing of the disposi-
tion of these investments, including registration rights and related costs.

(b)Percentages are based on net assets of $195,386,477.

(c) As defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940, at October 31, 2002, the Fund was con-
sidered to have a controlling interest in AuctionWatch.com, Inc.

(d)As defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940, all of the Fund’s preferred stock invest-
ments are in eligible portfolio companies except SafeStone Technologies PLC.The Fund pro-
vides significant managerial assistance to all of the portfolio companies in which it has invest-
ed, except ShopEaze Systems, Inc.The Fund provides significant managerial assistance to
portfolio companies that comprise 100% of the total value of the investments in portfolio
companies at October 31, 2002.

(e) Company in bankruptcy.

(f) Company in dissolution.

(g) Non-income producing assets.

* Affiliated Issuers (Total Market Value of $42,660,001): companies in which the Fund owns at
least 5% of the voting securities.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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capital gain distributions are generally declared and
paid annually. An additional distribution may be
paid by the Fund to avoid imposition of federal
income tax on any remaining undistributed net
investment income and capital gains. Distributions
can be made payable by the Fund either in the form
of a cash distribution or a stock dividend.The amount
and character of income and capital gain distri-
butions are determined in accordance with income
tax regulations which may differ from accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. These differences are due primarily to
differing treatments of income and gain on various
investment securities held by the Fund, timing
differences and differing characterizations of distri-
butions made by the Fund. Permanent book and tax
basis differences relating to shareholder distributions
will result in reclassifications and may affect the
allocation between net investment income, net
realized gain (loss) and paid in capital.

On December 4, 2001, the Fund announced an
ordinary income cash dividend of $0.044163 per
share, payable on January 3, 2002, to stockholders of
record at the close of business on December 10, 2001.
The Fund went ex-dividend on December 6, 2001.
Distributions can be made payable by the Fund in the
form of either a cash distribution or a stock dividend.
On the Fund’s ex-dividend date, the Fund was trading
on the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) at a
discount to net asset value. In accordance with the
Dividend Reinvestment Plan, the Dividend
Distribution Agent purchased shares on the open
market of the NYSE for those shareholders electing to
take their distributions in the form of stock dividends.

5. Transact ions Wi th  Other  Par t ies

Through March 2002, Fleet Investment Advisors
managed the Fund’s cash portfolio under a sub-
advisory agreement with the former Advisor.
Subsequently, the former Advisor managed those assets
until its resignation on June 19, 2002. Since that time,
the Fund’s cash portfolio is managed internally by
Fund employees.

The Fund has been granted exemptive relief from
certain provisions of the Investment Company Act of
1940, as amended, to permit the Fund to make co-
investments with certain affiliates of Draper Fisher

Jurvetson. The Fund has co-invested with certain
affiliates of Draper Fisher Jurvetson in IQdestination,
Lumeta, Mediaprise, and Phosistor.

For the year ended October 31, 2002, the Fund paid
meVC Advisers advisory fees amounting to
$3,592,757 and the former Advisor paid Draper
Advisers sub-advisory fees amounting to $1,581,103,
or 1% of the 2.5% management fee.

On June 19, 2002, when meVC Advisers resigned as
the Investment Advisor to the Fund effective
immediately, the former Advisor’s sub-advisory
agreement with Draper Fisher Jurvetson MeVC
Management Co., LLC (“Draper Advisers” or “the
former Sub-Advisor”) was terminated automatically as
a matter of contract construction. On June 20, 2002,
the Board voted to internalize all investment
management and administrative functions of the Fund
effective immediately.

On June 26, 2002, the Fund acquired various assets
from meVC Advisers necessary to run the Fund’s
information systems and web site, including but not
limited to, website equipment, systems hardware and
software, and intellectual property. The assets were
purchased for $17,855.

In June and July 2002, the Fund utilized the services
of Draper Fisher Jurvetson MeVC Management Co,
LLC as a temporary payroll agent to facilitate the
payment of the Fund’s employees. Management and
the Board believed it was in the stockholders’ best
interest to maintain continuity of payroll while
operations were initiated with the Fund’s ongoing
payroll vendor.

6. Concentra t ion of  Market  R isk

Financial instruments that subject the Fund to
concentrations of market risk consist principally of
preferred stocks and subordinated notes, which
represent approximately 27.74% of the Fund’s net
assets. The preferred stocks, as discussed in Note 7,
consist of investments in companies with no readily
determinable market values and as such are valued in
accordance with the Fund’s fair value policies. The
Fund’s investment strategy represents a high degree of
business and financial risk due to the fact that the
investments include entities with little operating
history or entities that possess operations in new or
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Investments in securities that are publicly traded on an
organized exchange are valued at their quoted closing
market price, less a discount to reflect the estimated
effects of restrictions on the sale of such securities
(“Valuation Discount”), if applicable. Investments in
companies whose securities are publicly traded in the
over the counter market are valued at the average
closing of their Bid and Ask prices, less a discount to
reflect the estimated effects of restrictions on the sale
of such securities (“Valuation Discount”), if applicable.
If a reliable last bid and ask price are not available,
market values for equity securities are determined
based on the last reliable bid quotation available from
a market maker in the security.

Short-term investments, including cash equivalents,
having maturities of 60 days or less are stated at
amortized cost, which approximates fair value. Other
fixed income securities are stated at fair value. Fair
value of these securities is determined at the most
recent bid or yield equivalent from dealers that make
markets in such securities.

Investment Transactions and Related Investment
Income – Investment transactions are accounted for
on the trade date (the date the order to buy or sell is
executed). The cost of securities sold is determined on
a first-in, first-out basis, unless otherwise specified.
Dividend income on investment securities is recorded
on the ex-dividend date. Interest income, which
includes accretion of discount and amortization of
premium, if applicable, is recorded on the accrual basis.

Cash and Cash Equivalents – For the purpose of the
Statement of Cash Flows, the Fund considers all
money market and all highly liquid temporary cash
investments purchased with an original maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Restricted Securities – The Fund will invest in
privately placed restricted securities. These securities
may be resold in transactions exempt from registration
or to the public if the securities are registered.
Disposal of these securities may involve time-
consuming negotiations and expense, and a prompt
sale at an acceptable price may be difficult.

Income Taxes – It is the policy of the Fund to meet
the requirements for qualification as a “regulated
investment company” under Subchapter M of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The
Fund is not subject to income or excise taxes to the

extent that it distributes all of its investment company
taxable income and net realized gains for its fiscal year.

Reclassifications – Certain previously reported
amounts have been reclassified to conform to the
current year presentation.

3. Management

From inception through June 19, 2002, the Fund was
charged a management fee by meVC Advisers at a rate
of 2.5% of the average weekly net assets of the Fund,
paid monthly in arrears. The former Advisor had
agreed to pay compensation to the directors and
officers for any and all services rendered to the Fund
and had agreed to pay all Fund expenses above and
beyond the 2.5% management fee paid to the former
Advisor by the Fund. A portion of this fee was also
used to pay the Fund’s sub-advisor. The former
Advisor had entered into a sub-advisory agreement
with the former Sub-Advisor in which the former
Advisor paid the former Sub-Advisor an annual
investment sub-advisory fee equal to 1.0% of the
Fund’s average weekly net assets, paid monthly in
arrears. The sub-advisory fees were not an additional
expense to the Fund.

The former Advisor resigned without notice on June
19, 2002. As a result, the Fund’s board internalized the
Fund’s operations, including management of the
Fund’s investments, and began to pay it’s own expenses
directly.The previous 2.5% expense cap, the maximum
amount of compensation to be paid to the former
Advisor, was terminated at the time of the former
Advisor’s resignation.

The Fund determined that the former Advisor had
not paid certain vendors for services performed on
behalf of the Fund, which meVC Advisers had agreed
to pay. On August 30, 2002, the Fund paid or accrued
$463,535 in expenses to pay those vendors, which
resulted in a $0.028 decrease in net asset value per
share. The Fund is considering action it may take
against the former Advisor to recover these expenses,
although, there is no guarantee of recovery.

4. Div idends and Dis t r ibut ions to  Shareholders

Income dividends and capital gain distributions, if any,
are recorded on the ex-dividend date. Dividends and
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developing industries. These investments are subject
to restrictions on resale because they were acquired
from the issuer in private placement transactions.

7. Por t fo l io  Investments

During the year ended October 31, 2002, the Fund
invested approximately $19,000,000 in four new
companies, CBCA, Phosistor, Sygate and 0-In, made
fourteen follow-on investments in AuctionWatch,
BlueStar, DataPlay, IQdestination, Lumeta, Process-
Claims, and SafeStone of approximately $10,006,000,
had three portfolio company exit events with
proceeds totaling approximately $9,955,000 and a
realized losses totaling approximately $14,834,000 in
the sale of infoUSA.com to its parent entity, the
disbursement of assets from EXP, and the sale of
Annuncio to PeopleSoft, had one return of capital of
approximately $2,430,000 from Pagoo, and had four
portfolio company write-offs with realized losses
totaling approximately $18,637,000 in the irreversible
dilution of equity in Personic, the filing of Chapter 7
of the US Code by InfoImage, the cessation of
operations by IQdestination, and the cessation of
operations by Mediaprise.

8. Commitments  and Cont ingencies

The Fund occupies its office space pursuant to an
operating lease, which is scheduled to expire on
October 31, 2005. Future payments under this lease
total $895,500, with annual minimum payments of
$298,500.

At October 31, 2002 and 2001, all of the Fund’s
investments in preferred stocks totaling $50,116,026
(25.6% of net assets) and $90,926,328 (35.7% of net
assets), respectively, and investments in subordinated
notes totaling $4,077,474 (2.1% of net assets) and $0,
respectively, have been valued by the Valuation
Committee of the Board of Directors, in the absence
of readily ascertainable market values. Because of the
inherent uncertainty of valuation, these values may
differ significantly from the values that would have
been used had a ready market for the investments
existed and the differences could be material.

9. Subsequent  Events

Effective November 1, 2002, Management has

engaged US Bancorp Fund Services LLC to handle all
functions of administration and accounting work
necessary for the operations of the Fund and has
engaged US Bank National Association to handle all
functions of custodial work necessary for the
operations of the Fund.

On November 1, 2002, the Fund initiated a stock
repurchase plan of up to $20 million in stock
repurchases. As of January 22, 2003, the Fund had
repurchased 203,200 shares under this plan.

On November 20,2002,DataPlay filed for bankruptcy
under Chapter 11 of the US Code.

On December 2, 2002 the Fund announced that it
would begin doing business under the name MVC
Capital, that it had hired Michael D. Stewart as 
its Acting Chief Financial Officer, and that the Fund’s
principal executive offices were now located at 3000
Sand Hill Road, Building 1 Suite 155, Menlo Park,
CA  94025.

On December 18, 2002, the Fund entered into an
investment of $3,000,000 in the form of a Convertible
Promissory Note with BS Management, Inc.maturing
on March 17, 2002. BS Management is based in the
Isle of Man.

On December 18, 2002, the Fund increased its
investment of Series E Preferred Stock of CBCA, Inc.
by $1,000,000.

On December 20, 2002, the Fund entered into an
investment of $3,000,000 in the form of a Convertible
Promissory Note with BS Management, Inc.maturing
on March 17, 2003.The transaction earns a fixed rate
of interest at 12% per annum on the outstanding
balance, prior to conversion of the loan. BS
Management is based in the Isle of Man.

On December 26, 2002, the Fund entered into an
investment of $5,000,000 in the form of a Credit
Facility with Synhrgy HR Technologies, Inc.
(“Synhrgy”) maturing on January 3, 2006. The note
earns a fixed rate of interest at 12% per annum on the
outstanding balance of the note. The Fund also
received warrants to purchase Series B-1 Preferred
Stock. Synhrgy is based in Houston,Texas.

On December 30, 2002, the Fund entered into an
investment of $5,050,000 in the form of a Convertible
Credit Facility with Integral Development
Corporation (“Integral”) maturing on December 31,
2005. The transaction earns a floating rate of interest
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at prime plus 5% per annum with a floor at 10% per
annum and a ceiling at 12% per annum on the
outstanding balance, prior to conversion. The Fund
also received warrants to purchase a future round of
preferred stock. Integral is based in Mountain View,
California.

On December 30, 2002, the Fund entered into 
an investment of $5,050,000 in the form of a Credit
Facility with Arcot Systems, Inc. (“Arcot”) maturing
on December 31, 2005. The note earns a floating 
rate of interest at prime plus 5% per annum with 
a floor at 10% per annum and a ceiling at 12% per
annum on the outstanding balance of the note.The
Fund also received warrants to purchase a future
round of preferred stock. Arcot is based in Santa 
Clara, California.

On December 31, 2002, the Fund increased its
investment of Series E Preferred Stock of CBCA, Inc.
by $1,000,000.

On December 19, 2002, Vice Chancellor Lamb
granted Millenco’s motion for summary judgment 
on its claim that the directors breached their duty 
of disclosure under Delaware law by omitting material
facts concerning the business relationship among 
three of the directors (directors Grillos, Gerhard and
Hughes) at eVineyard, Inc. (a privately held
corporation) from the 2001 and 2002 proxy
statements. Director Grillos, an “interested” director
of the Fund by reason of being its CEO and managing
member of the Former Sub-Advisor, was Chairman 
of the Board and Chairman of the Compensation
Committee of eVineyard at the same time that
directors Gerhard and Hughes, “non-interested”
directors of the Fund, were officers of eVineyard.Vice
Chancellor Lamb, finding that the omissions rendered
the proxy statements false and misleading, ordered the
Fund to hold new elections for the seats held by
directors Grillos and Gerhard and former director
Freudenthal, to be conducted either in conjunction
with the Fund’s upcoming annual meeting in 2003 
(at which two other director seats are up for election)
if that meeting is held within 60 days of the date 
of the Vice Chancellor’s order, or separately on or
before February 15, 2003. The Vice Chancellor noted
without comment Millenco’s statement that the
remaining claims in Millenco’s latest amended
complaint were no longer at issue in the case.

On December 22, 2002, the Fund filed a motion for
re-argument of the Vice Chancellor’s order with
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respect to the date by which the Fund must hold 
an annual or special meeting for the election to fill 
the three directors’ seats. On January 8, 2003, the 
Vice Chancellor issued an order granting the Fund’s
motion to re-argue and extending the last date for that
election to February 28, 2003.

On January 6, 2003, the former Board of Directors 
of the Fund held a meeting to discuss the upcoming
annual meeting of stockholders and the proxy solici-
tation process. The former Board of Directors also
discussed at great length the qualifications of various
Director Candidates to be considered for appointment
to the Board of Directors. On January 6, 2003, the
former Board of Directors determined to increase 
the size of the Board from five members to seven
members so that the Fund would have greater
expertise and experience in managing the Fund’s
affairs. On January 7, 2003, the former Board of
Directors nominated Messrs. Grillos, Jordan, Tobkin,
Hootnick, Locke and Hughes to serve as Directors of
the Fund and determined that the names of those
persons be submitted to stockholders for approval as
Directors of the Fund.

On January 16, 2003, the former Board of Directors,
including the Directors who are not interested persons
of the Fund, appointed Messrs. Hootnick, Jordan,
Locke and Tobkin to fill vacancies on the Board 
of Directors that would be created by the resignations
of Messrs. Gerhard, Hughes and Lufkin and the
existing vacancy of Peter S. Freudenthal. On January
16, 2003, the former Board of Directors nominated
Mr. Grillos to serve as a Class I director for the
remainder of the three-year term to which he was
elected in 2001, Mr. Hootnick to serve as a Class II
director for the remainder of the three-year term to
which Mr. Gerhard was elected in 2002, and Mr.
Jordan to serve as a Class I director for the remainder
of the three-year term to which Mr. Freudenthal 
was elected in 2001. On January 16, 2003, the former
Board of Directors also nominated Mr. Locke to serve
for the remainder of the three-year term of the newly-
created Class II directorship, the term of which expires
at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held in
2005 and Mr.Tobkin to serve as Class III director for
a three-year term to expire at the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held in 2006.

On January 16, 2003, the current Board of Directors
held a Meeting. At that Meeting the Board of
Directors ratified and approved an increase in the size



To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of 
meVC Draper Fisher Jurvetson Fund I, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheet, including the schedule of investments, and the related
statements of operations, cash flows and of shareholders’ equity and the selected per share data and ratios
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of meVC Draper Fisher Jurvetson Fund I,
Inc. (the “Fund”) at October 31, 2002, the results of its operations, cash flows, shareholders’ equity and
selected per share data and ratios for the periods indicated, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.These financial statements and selected per share
data and ratios (hereafter referred to as “financial statements”) are the responsibility of the Fund’s
management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit of these financial statements in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit,
which included confirmation of securities at October 31, 2002 by correspondence with the custodian,
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
January 22, 2003
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of the Fund’s Board of Directors from five members to
seven members. The Board of Directors ratified and
accepted their appointment to fill vacancies on the
Board of Directors that had been created by the
resignations of Messrs. Gerhard, Hughes and Lufkin
and the existing vacancy of Mr. Freudenthal.

At the same meeting, the current Board of Directors
also ratified the nomination of Mr. Grillos to serve as
a Class I director for the remainder of the three-year
term to which he was elected in 2001, ratified the
nomination of Mr. Hootnick to serve as a Class II
director for the remainder of the three-year term to
which Mr. Gerhard was elected in 2002, and ratified
the nomination of Mr. Jordan to serve as a Class I
director for the remainder of the three-year term to
which Mr. Freudenthal was elected in 2001. At the
same meeting, the Board of Directors also ratified the
nomination of Mr.Locke to serve for the remainder of
the three-year term of the newly-created Class II
directorship, the term of which expires at the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be held in 2005 and
ratified the nominations of Messrs. Hoar, Sims and
Tobkin to serve as Class III directors for a three-year
term to expire at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders
to be held in 2006.
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Directors ratified and approved an increase in the size
of the Fund’s Board of Directors from five members to
seven members. The Board of Directors ratified and
accepted their appointment to fill vacancies on the
Board of Directors that had been created by the
resignations of Messrs. Gerhard, Hughes and Lufkin
and the existing vacancy of Mr. Freudenthal.

At the same meeting, the current Board of Directors
also ratified the nomination of Mr. Grillos to serve as
a Class I director for the remainder of the three-year
term to which he was elected in 2001, ratified the
nomination of Mr. Hootnick to serve as a Class II
director for the remainder of the three-year term to
which Mr. Gerhard was elected in 2002, and ratified
the nomination of Mr. Jordan to serve as a Class I
director for the remainder of the three-year term to
which Mr. Freudenthal was elected in 2001. At the
same meeting, the Board of Directors also ratified the
nomination of Mr.Locke to serve for the remainder of
the three-year term of the newly-created Class II
directorship, the term of which expires at the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be held in 2005 and
ratified the nominations of Messrs. Hoar, Sims and
Tobkin to serve as Class III directors for a three-year
term to expire at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders
to be held in 2006.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Reference is made to the information with respect 
to “executive compensation” contained in the Fund’s
2003 Proxy Statement, which information is
incorporated herein by reference.

Compensa t i on  Commi t t ee  I n t e r l ocks  and
Ins ider  Par t ic ipa t ion

Prior to the internalization of management effective
June 19, 2002, all compensation fees and salaries were
paid by the Adviser and not by the Fund.

In February 2002, a Compensation Committee 
of the Board of Directors was established. The
Compensation Committee has the responsibility to
consider and make recommendations to the Board 
of directors regarding all matters relating to the Fund’s

Directors and Officers.The Committee shall evaluate
and recommend to the Board the compensation,
expense reimbursement policies and retirement
policies of the independent directors and the compen-
sation of interested directors who are not “affiliated
persons” of the Fund, as that term is defined in the
1940 Act. Membership of the Committee was
comprised of Larry J. Gerhard, Harold E. Hughes and
Chauncey F. Lufkin. The Committee did not meet
during the Fund’s most recently completed fiscal year.

Compensation for John M. Grillos, Chief Executive
Officer of the Fund,was determined by the Chairman
of the Audit Committee, Harold Hughes and 
was subsequently unanimously approved by the Fund’s
independent directors. Mr. Grillos’ compensation,
as well as the compensation for all the Fund’s directors
and officers, is not tied to the performance of the Fund.

On January 16, 2003, the Board of Directors selected
Messrs. Vincent H. Tobkin and Peter J. Locke as
members of the Nominating and Compensation
Committee to replace Larry J. Gerhard, Harold E.
Hughes and Chauncey F. Lufkin who resigned upon
their replace by Messrs.Tobkin and Locke.

Larry J.Gerhard, an independent director of the Fund,
conducted site visits to one of the Fund’s portfolio
companies, DataPlay, during fiscal 2002. Mr. Gerhard
was not compensated by the Fund for his work, other
than the reimbursement of approximately $5,000 in
respect of expenses incurred in providing such due
diligence work.

John M. Grillos, Chief Executive Officer of the Fund,
was an investor in eVineyard, an on-line wine retailer.
In May 1999, Mr. Grillos was named to the eVineyard
board of directors and was appointed Chairman 
of the company’s Compensation Committee. Mr.
Gerhard was an investor in, and from May 1999
through March 2002, a director of, eVineyard and
served from May 1999 through April 2002 as its Chief
Executive Officer. Mr. Hughes was also an investor in,
and from September 2000 through October 2002,
a director of, eVineyard and from October 2001
through April 2002, served as its Chief Operating
Officer and President. Mr. Grillos resigned in
November 2001 as Chairman and in January 2002 as
a director of eVineyard.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS
WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

None

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFI-
CERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Reference is made to the information with respect to
“directors and executive officers of the Registrant”
contained in the Fund’s proxy statement filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, in connection
with the Fund’s annual meeting of shareholders to be
held on February 28, 2003 (the “2003 Proxy
Statement”), which information is incorporated
herein by reference.

On December 19, 2002, Vice Chancellor Lamb
granted Millenco’s motion for summary judgment 
on its claim that the directors breached their duty 
of disclosure under Delaware law by omitting material
facts concerning the business relationship among 
three of the directors (directors Grillos, Gerhard 
and Hughes) at eVineyard, Inc. (a privately held
corporation) from the 2001 and 2002 proxy
statements. Director Grillos, an “interested” director
of the Fund by reason of being its CEO and managing
member of the Former Sub-Advisor, was Chairman 
of the Board and Chairman of the Compensation
Committee of eVineyard at the same time that
directors Gerhard and Hughes, “non-interested”
directors of the Fund, were officers of eVineyard.Vice
Chancellor Lamb, finding that the omissions rendered
the proxy statements false and misleading, ordered 
the Fund to hold new elections for the seats held 
by directors Grillos and Gerhard and former
director Freudenthal, to be conducted either in
conjunction with the Fund’s upcoming annual
meeting in 2003 (at which two other director seats are
up for election) if that meeting is held within 60 days
of the date of the Vice Chancellor’s order, or separately
on or before February 15, 2003.The Vice Chancellor
noted without comment Millenco’s statement that
the remaining claims in Millenco’s latest amended
complaint were no longer at issue in the case.

On December 22, 2002, the Fund filed a motion for
re-argument of the Vice Chancellor’s order with

respect to the date by which the Fund must hold an
annual or special meeting for the election to fill the
three directors’ seats. On January 8, 2003, the Vice
Chancellor issued an order granting the Fund’s
motion to re-argue and extending the last date for that
election to February 28, 2003.

On January 6, 2003, the former Board of Directors 
of the Fund held a meeting to discuss the upcoming
annual meeting of stockholders and the proxy solici-
tation process. The former Board of Directors 
also discussed at great length the qualifications of
various Director Candidates to be considered for
appointment to the Board of Directors. On January
6, 2003, the former Board of Directors determined
to increase the size of the Board from five members
to seven members so that the Fund would have
greater expertise and experience in managing the
Fund’s affairs.On January 7, 2003, the former Board of
Directors nominated Messrs. Grillos, Jordan, Tobkin,
Hootnick, Locke and Hughes to serve as Directors of
the Fund and determined that the names of those
persons be submitted to stockholders for approval as
Directors of the Fund.

On January 16, 2003, the former Board of Directors,
including the Directors who are not interested persons
of the Fund, appointed Messrs. Hootnick, Jordan,
Locke and Tobkin to fill vacancies on the Board of
Directors that would be created by the resignations of
Messrs. Gerhard, Hughes and Lufkin and the existing
vacancy of Peter S. Freudenthal. On January 16,
2003, the former Board of Directors nominated Mr.
Grillos to serve as a Class I director for the remainder
of the three-year term to which he was elected in
2001, Mr. Hootnick to serve as a Class II director for
the remainder of the three-year term to which Mr.
Gerhard was elected in 2002, and Mr. Jordan to serve
as a Class I director for the remainder of the three-year
term to which Mr. Freudenthal was elected in 2001.
On January 16, 2003, the former Board of Directors
also nominated Mr. Locke to serve for the remainder
of the three-year term of the newly-created Class II
directorship, the term of which expires at the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be held in 2005 and Mr.
Tobkin to serve as Class III director for a three-year
term to expire at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders
to be held in 2006.

On January 16, 2003, the current Board of Directors
held a Meeting. At that Meeting the Board of
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN
BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Reference is made to the information with respect to
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners
and Management” contained in the Fund’s 2003
Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND
RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The former Advisor, pursuant to the terms of the
Investment Advisory Agreement dated March 27,
2000 and interim Investment Advisory Agreement
dated March 27, 2002 (collectively the “Advisory
Agreements”), was responsible for the supervision of
portfolio investments.Transactions between the Fund
and the former Advisor, including operational respon-
sibilities, duties and compensation, were governed by
the Advisory Agreements.Throughout the term of the
Advisory Agreements, the Fund paid the former
Advisor an annual management fee of 2.5% of the
Fund’s average weekly net assets, payable monthly, in
arrears. For the period November 1, 2001 to May 31,
2002, the former Advisor earned an investment
advisory fee in the aggregate amount of $3,478,311.

The former Sub-Advisor, pursuant to the terms of the
Investment Sub-Advisory Agreement dated March 27,
2000 and the interim Investment Sub-Advisory
Agreement dated March 27, 2002 (collectively the
“Sub-Advisory Agreements”), was responsible, on a
day-to-day basis for the selection and supervision of
portfolio investments. The former Sub-Advisor
presented all co-investment opportunities with
affiliates in the Draper Fisher Jurvetson Network for
approval by the Fund’s Board of Directors.
Throughout the term of the Sub-Advisory
Agreements, the former Advisor paid to the former
Sub-Advisor an annual management fee of 1.0% of
the Fund’s average weekly net assets, payable monthly,
in arrears. For period November 1, 2001 to June 19,
2002, the former Sub-Advisor earned an investment
advisory fee in the aggregate amount of $1,505,770.

As stated above in Item 1 (Business—-Co-Investments
and Follow-On Investments) and in Item 8 (Note 5 of

the notes accompanying the financial statements in
“Transactions with Other Parties’’), the Fund co-
invested in Portfolio Companies from time to time
with affiliates of the Fund and the former Sub-
Advisor, including certain venture capital investment
partnerships. The Fund’s co-investments with such
affiliates are subject to the terms and conditions of the
exemptive order granted by the Commission, which
relieves the Fund from certain provisions of the Act
and permits certain joint transactions with the
investment partnerships.

In accordance with the conditions of the order, the
Fund has co-invested with certain affiliates of Draper
Fisher Jurvetson in the following Portfolio Companies
of the Fund: IQdestination, Lumeta Corporation,
Mediaprise, Inc. and Phosistor, Inc.

Further, in accordance with the conditions of the
order, John M. Grillos, Chief Executive Officer of the
Fund, is a limited partner investor in Osprey Ventures
(“Osprey”), a venture capital fund investing primarily
in early stage technology companies. Mr. Grillos owns
less than 0.09% of the outstanding limited partnership
interests in Osprey. Osprey is a co-investor in two
MVC portfolio companies, BlueStar Solutions, Inc.,
and ShopEaze Systems, Inc.

ITEM 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Within the 90-day period prior to the date of this
report, the Fund’s chief executive officer and acting
chief financial officer evaluated the effectiveness of the
design and operation of the Fund’s disclosure controls
and procedures and concluded that such disclosure
controls and procedures are effective.There have been
no significant changes in internal controls or in other
factors, which could significantly affect internal
controls subsequent to the date that the Fund’s chief
executive officer and chief financial officer carried out
their evaluations
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Per formance Graph

As required by Item 402 (l) of Regulation S-K, a line graph comparing the yearly percentage change in the
Fund’s cumulative total shareholder return with the cumulative total return of the Morgan Stanley Technology
Index, an electronics based composite index is provided:

The Morgan Stanley Technology Index is an equal weighted index composed purely of electronics-based
technology companies.

The Index comprises 35 US public issuers drawn from 11 technology sub-sectors, including:
• Computer & Business Services • Data Networking/Internet Infrastructure 
• Electronics Manufacturing Services • Enterprise Software 
• Internet & PC software • Server & Enterprise Hardware 
• PC Hardware & Data Storage • Semiconductor Capital Equipment 
• Semiconductors • Technical Software (CAD/CAM, EDA) 
• Telecom Equipment-Wireline/Wireless 

Past performance is no guaranty of future results. Due to market volatility, current performance may be less that
shown. Investment return and principal value will fluctuate so that shares may be worth more or less than their
original cost. Total returns include change in share price and reinvestment of dividends and capital gain’s distri-
butions, if any. Total returns reflect the reinvestment of all dividends and capital gains.You cannot invest directly
in an index.
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The meVC Draper Fisher Jurvetson Fund I, Inc. (d.b.a. “MVC Capital”) is committed to providing our
shareholders with top-quality service. While information about you is fundamental to our ability to accomplish
this, we fully recognize the importance of keeping personal and account information secure. At the same time,
the nature of our business may sometimes require that we share certain information about you with other
organizations or companies. As such, we want you to be aware of how we handle personal information. Our
policies and procedures for collecting and disclosing personal information are detailed below:

We may collect non-public personal information about you from the following sources:

• Information we receive from you or your authorized representative on applications or other forms, in
interviews, or by other means;

• Information we receive from consumer or other reporting agencies,governmental agencies,employers or others;

• Information about your transactions with us, our affiliates or others; and

• Information we collect when you visit our Internet website.

We do not sell client information – whether it is your personal information or the fact that you are an
MVC Capital shareholder – to anyone. Nor do we share such information, except when needed to make
you aware of related financial products and services that we may offer or to provide other information that you
may request. The details of such circumstances are as follows:

• In order to alert you to other MVC Capital financial products and services, we may share your information
within the MVC Capital family of affiliated companies.

• In certain instances, we may contract with non-affiliated companies to perform services for us. Where
necessary, we will disclose information we have about you to these third parties. In all such cases, we provide
the third party with only the information necessary to carry out its assigned responsibilities and only for that
purpose. In addition, we require these third parties to treat your private information with the same high
degree of confidentiality that we do.

• Finally, we will release information about you if you direct us to do so, if we are compelled by law to do so,
or in other legally limited circumstances (for example, to protect your account from fraud).

Our concern for the privacy of our shareholders naturally extends to those who use our website,
mvccapital.com.

• mvccapital.com offers customized features that require our use of “HTTP cookies” – tiny pieces of
information that we ask your browser to store. However, we make very limited use of these cookies. We do
not use them to pull data from your hard drive, to learn your email address, or to view data in cookies created
by other websites. We will not share the information in our cookies or give others access to it – except to
help us better serve your investment needs.

You can visit our website to read more details about its security and privacy features.

We maintain physical, electronic, and procedural safeguards that comply with applicable regulatory standards to
guard your non-personal information.

As required by federal law, we will notify you of our privacy policy annually. We reserve the right to modify this
policy at any time, but rest assured that if we do change it, we will inform you promptly. If you have any
questions, please feel free to call us at 1-877-474-6382 or visit our website at www.mvccapital.com.

December 10, 2002
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ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a ) Financ ia l  Sta tements  Page

Balance Sheets 
October 31, 2002 and October 31, 2001 42-43

Statement of Operations 
For the Year Ended October 31, 2002, the Year Ended 
October 31, 2001 and the Period from March 31, 2000 
(commencement of operations) to October 31, 2000 44

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended October 31, 2002, the Year Ended 
October 31, 2001 and the Period from March 31, 2000 
(commencement of operations) to October 31, 2000 45

Statement of Shareholders’ Equity 
For the Period from March 31, 2000 (commencement 
of operations) to October 31, 2000, the Year Ended  
October 31, 2001 and the Year Ended October 31, 2002 46

Selected Per Share Data and Ratios
For the Year Ended October 31, 2002, the Year  
Ended October 31, 2001, and the Period Ended 
March 31, 2000 to October 31, 2000 47

Schedule of Investments
October 31, 2002 48-54

Notes to Financial Statements 55-60

Report of Independent Public Accountants 61

All other information required in the financial statement schedules has been incorporated in the financial
statements or notes thereto or has been omitted since the information is not applicable, not present or not
present in amounts sufficient to require submission of the schedule.

(b ) REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

During the last fiscal quarter of the fiscal year ended October 31, 2002, the Fund filed two reports on Form
8-K. The first report, dated September 9, 2002, was filed to fairly disclose a letter mailed to certain share-
holders by the Fund in response to a letter mailed to certain shareholders by the arbitrage firm, Millenco.
The second report, dated October 2, 2002, was filed to announce the Board of Directors’ comprehensive
plans to enhance shareholder value.

(c ) EXHIB ITS

None.

(d ) F INANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

None.
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